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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Wanjia
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the audited financial results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2014.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the Company was spun-off from Hua Xia
Healthcare Holdings Limited (“Hua Xia"”) and listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) by way of introduction on 11 October 2013.

The Group continued to focus on pharmaceutical wholesales and
distribution business and pharmaceutical retail chain business in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

Our Group has a large and broad customer base through our
distribution network in Fujian Province in the PRC. Our Group
distributes pharmaceutical products to our customers located
principally in the Fujian Province and also sells pharmaceutical
products in neighboring provinces. Total revenue generated from
pharmaceutical wholesales and distribution business for the year
ended 31 March 2014 was approximately HK$1,858.355 million,
representing an increase of approximately 11.09% as compared to
2013.

Our Group also operates pharmaceutical retail business through
Fujian Huihao Sihai Pharmaceutical Chain Company Limited* (&
BEEHIMSEEEHABMRET L R) which was accounted for as
one of our subsidiaries. We have an established retail network in
Fujian Province in the PRC. At the date of this report, we directly
operated 115 retail pharmacies in six prefectural — level districts
of the Fujian Province in the PRC under the brand name “Huihao
Sihai".

*  English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only

Chairman’s Statement
FREBIRE

RAEBRRBEEBEZERERAT ([FLF])
2ESE ([ESEE]) MARZXRARAMN
Brm (@ dsKEB BT -—NUF=A
ST-HLEFEZEERVBEE-

EH O
FRALAREEZEREEERAA ([
BDAHRIER-ZZB-—=F+ A+ - BUNEL
ARBBHERXGMAERQE (TBXM]) =
ML

AEBEESIREPEARLMNE ([HE])
HEHERPBRIEEBUARERTEHHEHE
i%o

FEEREVRTERREZ D HAKARM
EREAZEFH AKBOIEURNEESR
ZEFPOHER YRR LIENHEEER
BE-Z-—NE=A=1+—BILFE ZERit
BROHEBEE 2B WL %H1,858,355,000
B R-ZE-=FEMY11.09% °

REENEBARSAEEWMBLA 2 — 2|
BRI SEREHARETLAKEER
ZEXB - ARECETEERERYTEH
FoRMAREAH AREETRBEZE N EM
A U BHFmE| 2 RmEEBEREE S
BEREHE-

" HXELEBZRXEEERRE

EESERRERLAR
2013/2014 F 5§ 5



Chairman’s Statement
FREIRSE

The turnover contributed by the pharmaceutical retail business for
the year ended 31 March 2014 was approximately HK$238.100
million, representing an increase of approximately 12.04% as
compared to 2013.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year, the Group continued to see increase in our
revenue mainly driven by the sales from the pharmaceutical
wholesales and distribution in the PRC. Turnover of the Group for
the year was approximately HK$2,096.455 million in comparison
with approximately HK$1,885.369 million in 2013, representing
an increase of approximately 11.20% compared with last year. The
gross profit of the Group was approximately HK$189.464 million
in comparison with HK$164.159 million in 2013. The net profit
attributable to the owners of the Company was approximately
HK$48.920 million in comparison with HK$41.763 million in
2013. Our Company has met the profit forecast for the year
ended 31 March 2014 for not less than HK$40 million which
disclosed in the Prospectus dated 30 September 2013. The net
profit attributable to the owners of the Company yielded an

increase of approximately 17.14% compared to that of 2013.

PROSPECTUS

The management of the Group has realised the potential
opportunities in the field and continued to address the needs of
the market and the public through refined services and quality

products.

The pharmaceutical market consolidation has continued at
national and local level providing opportunities for companies
with large scale operations like the Group. At the same time,
competition among the industry is keen. Our group would actively
look for further development opportunities made available by
the continued healthcare reform. We will also continue further
strengthen our drug delivery to hospitals and wholesales segments
business and expansion our retails pharmacies in the year
2014/15.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to the management team and staff for their tireless
dedicated that helps fuel the Group’s healthy development. In
addition, | would also like to thank all our shareholders, business
partners and customers for their continuous support. We will
continue to devote unwavering efforts to reap promising returns

for all parties.

Weng Jiaxing

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 June 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EIR BT K i

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Summary of the results of the Group for the financial year ended
31 March 2014 is as follows:

o Total turnover was approximately HK$2,096.455 million
(2013: approximately HK$1,885.369 million), representing
approximately 11.20% of growth over 2013. The rise
in the turnover was mainly driven by the sales from the
pharmaceutical wholesales and distribution segment due to
increase in overall demand for pharmaceutical products and

the expansion of the product portfolio.

o Gross profit was approximately HK$189.464 million
(2013: approximately HK$164.159 million), representing
approximately 15.41% of growth over 2013.

o The operating profit was approximately HK$80.196 million
(2013: approximately HK$64.797 million), representing

approximately 23.82% increase as compared to last year.

o Net profit attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$48.920 million (2013: approximately
HK$41.763 million), representing approximately 17.14%

increase as compared to the previous year.

o The Group had total cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$43.638 million as at 31 March 2014. (31
March 2013: approximately HK$30.676 million)

o The board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013: Nil).

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the Company was spun-off from Hua Xia
Healthcare Holdings Limited (“Hua Xia"”) and listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) by way of introduction on 11 October 2013.

The Group continues to focus on pharmaceutical wholesales and
distribution business and pharmaceutical retail chain business in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

Turnover

Looking back at 2013/14, the Group’s revenue experienced
steady growth. The Group recorded revenue of approximately
HK$2,096.455 million (2013: approximately HK$1,885.369
million) for the year ended 31 March 2014, accounting for an
increase of approximately 11.20% over last year. The gross profit
margin of the Group was approximately 9%, which maintained at

a similar level as in 2013.

Pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution business

The Group has a large and broad customer base through our
distribution network in Fujian Province in the PRC. The Group
distributes pharmaceutical products to our customers located
principally in the Fujian Province and also sells pharmaceutical
products in neighboring provinces such as Guangdong, Hunan,
Hubei, Jiangxi, Aunhui and Zhejiang. Our customers can be
categorized into three types namely hospitals and healthcare
institutions, distributor customers and end customers such
as companies operating pharmaceutical retail chain stores,
independent pharmacies, and outpatient departments of
community hospitals, healthcare service stations and clinics.
The turnover generated from the pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution business amounted to approximately HK$1,858.355
million (2013: approximately HK$1,672.848 million), representing
approximately 11.09% of growth over 2013 and accounted for
approximately 88.64% of the Group's turnover. The increase
was primarily due to the expansion of distribution network and

product portfolio.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
SR BT Kk i

Pharmaceutical retail chain business

The Group operates pharmaceutical retail business through Fujian
Huihao Sihai Pharmaceutical Chain Company Limited” ({82 B4
MigEE s EE AR S QA ) which was accounted for as one of
our subsidiaries. The Group offers a wide variety of products in
our retail pharmacies including prescription medicines, over-the-
counter medicines, healthcare food products, traditional Chinese
medicines, medical supplies and medical devices. During the year,
15 retail pharmacies were opened. The Group seeks to introduce
new products and services to meet changing customer preferences
and to differentiate the Group from our competitors. The turnover
generated from pharmaceutical retail chain business amounted
to approximately HK$238.100 million (2013:
HK$212.521 million),

growth over 2013. The increase was primarily due to an increase

approximately

representing approximately 12.04% of
in the number of retail pharmacies.

Since year 2013/14, the China Food and Drug Administration
has implemented a new Good Supply Practice (“GSP") in which
details information are not yet been clearly disclosed to the
public. Therefore only 15 new retail pharmacies are being opened
in Fujian Province in the PRC. The expected number of retail
pharmacies which are to be open during the period was behind
the schedule. We would closely monitor the further development

of the new GSP and open our retail pharmacies steadily.

Other revenue

Other revenue, primarily including sundry income, bank interest
income, exhibition income and rental income amounted to
approximately HK$7.543 million (2013: approximately HK$7.729
million) for the year ended 31 March 2014, which maintained at

similar level as in 2013.

* English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consisted of salaries
paid to sales and marketing personnel and rental expenses of
retail pharmacies. For the year ended 31 March 2014, selling and
distribution expenses amounted to approximately HK$70.524
million (2013: approximately HK$61.397 million), representing
an increase of approximately 14.87% over the last year. More
selling and distribution expense incurred mainly attributable to
the increase in both salaries and rental expenses arising from the
increase in both the number of sales and marketing personnel
employed by the Group and the number of retail pharmacies

during the year.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 March 2014
amounted to approximately HK$47.033 million (2013:
approximately HK$46.802 million), representing a slightly increase
of approximately 0.49% over last year. By excluding the expenses
incurred for the listing of Company’s shares on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, the administrative expenses approximately
HK$42.278 million (2013: approximately HK$40.402 million,
excluding the expenses incurred for the listing of shares),
representing an increase of approximately 4.64% over the last
year. More administrative expenses incurred mainly due to the
expansion of the business scale.

Finance costs

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the finance costs of the
Group were approximately HK$6.015 million (2013: approximately
HK$4.090 million), representing a significant increase of
approximately 47.07% over the last year. The increase was mainly
due to increased average outstanding amounts of bank loans

during the year.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

The Group recorded a profit attributable to owners of
the Company of approximately HK$48.920 million (2013:
approximately HK$41.763 million) during the year ended 31
March 2014, represents an increase about 17.14% compared
to last year. The increase was mainly contributed by decrease in

listing expenses incurred by the Group compared to last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PROSPECTUS

The management of the Group has realised the potential
opportunities in the field and continued to address the needs of
the market and the public through refined services and quality

products.

The pharmaceutical market consolidation has continued at
national and local level providing opportunities for companies
with large scale operations like the Group. At the same time,
competition among the industry is keen. Our group would actively
look for further development opportunities made available by
the continued healthcare reform. We will also continue further
strengthen our drug delivery to hospitals and wholesales segments

business and expansion of retails pharmacies in the year 2014/15.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group had total cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$43.638 million as at 31 March 2014 (2013: approximately
HK$30.676 million). The Group recorded total current assets of
approximately HK$621.814 million as at 31 March 2014 (2013:
approximately HK$581.707 million) and total current liabilities of
approximately HK$386.996 million as at 31 March 2014 (2013:
approximately HK$1,257.722 million). The current ratio of the
Group, calculated by dividing the current assets by the current
liabilities, was approximately 1.607 as at 31 March 2014 (2013:
approximately 0.463).

As at 31 March 2014, the Group’'s gearing ratio was
approximately 4% based on outstanding debts (comprising bank
borrowings) less cash and cash equivalents over total equity
(including all capital and reserves attributable to owners of the

Company) (2013: approximately 15%).

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, the Group had no material capital

commitment.

ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
Save for the Group Reorganisation as described in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements and those described in the
Listing Document, there was no material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries and associated companies by the Company during the

year under review.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, no member of the Group was
engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material importance and
no litigation or claim of material importance was known to the
directors to be pending or threatened against any member of the

Group.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Since almost all transactions of the Group are denominated in
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars and most of the bank deposits
are being kept in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars to minimize
exposure to foreign exchange risk, the directors consider that the

Group's risk exposure to currency fluctuations to be minimal.

Therefore, the Group had not implemented any formal hedging
or other alternative policies to deal with such exposure during the

year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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CHARGES ON GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had bank borrowings
outstanding balances and bill payables of approximately
HK$88.088 million and HK$36.070 million respectively. The
Group’s pledged bank deposits, prepaid lease payments and
investment properties of approximately HK$17.431 million,
HK$1.979 million and HK$8.306 million respectively, were pledged

as collateral to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the year, the revenue of the Group was principally
generated from: (1) pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution
business and (2) pharmaceutical retail chain business in PRC.
Financial information in respect of these operations is presented in

Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2014, the total issued share capital of the
Company was approximately HK$6.484 million representing
648,405,300 ordinary shares. As at 31 March 2013, the share
capital of the Group represents the issued share capital of
the Company, Luxuriant Expand Global Investments Limited
and Timely Hero Enterprises Limited prior to completion of

Reorganisation.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had 1,176 (2013: 1,204) full
time employees (including directors) as shown in the following
table:

Number of Staff
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88,088,000 7T 36,070,000 T e K&K E
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BITR AN 34X 56,484,000 0  HE R
648,405,300 EBR R_ZF—=F=A
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DA ZEBITRAE

& 8B B & 8l B 3%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

For the year ended 31 March 2014, staff costs (including directors
emoluments) amounted to approximately HK$60.670 million
(2013: approximately HK$53.333 million). The Group remunerates
its employees based on individual performance and qualification.
Apart from the basic remuneration, staff benefits include
the contribution to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme,
discretionary bonus and medical coverage in Hong Kong; and
basic insurance for the elderly, basic medical insurance, work
injury insurance and unemployment insurance to the employees in
the PRC.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Completion of the proposed acquisition

On 9 April 2014, Fujian Province Fuzhou City Huihao
Pharmaceutical Co. Limited (“Fuzhou Huihao"”), a wholly owned
subsidiary (the “Purchaser”) and Hui Hao Yi Yao (Xiamen)
Company Limited (formerly name as Xiamen Hui Sheng Yi
Yao Company Limited), a PRC pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution corporation, entered into an arrangement agreement
in relation to the conditional acquisition 60% of net assets value
of Hui Hao Yi Yao (Xiamen) Company Limited (the “Proposed
Acquisition”) by the Purchaser. The consideration of acquisition
is approximately RMB4.945 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$6.204 million). Upon completion of the Proposed Acquisition,
Hui Hao Yi Yao (Xiamen) Company Limited will become a 60%
owned subsidiary of the Purchaser. The acquisition was completed
on 23 April 2014 with all the conditions precedent under the
arrangement agreement being fulfilled.

After the acquisition, the Company has engaged an independent
qualified professional valuer to measure the fair value of the
property, plant and equipment on the completion date. Since the
valuation is still in progress, the Company is unable to measure
any possible goodwill or gain from bargain purchase as at the date
of completion. Therefore, the directors considered that it is not
practicable to disclose the financial information of Hui Hao Yi Yao
(Xiamen) Company Limited on the completion date at this stage.

Legal proceedings

On 12 April 2014, Fuzhou Huihao as plaintiff initiated legal
proceedings against a customer at the People’s Court of Minhou
County for a sale and purchase agreement in which the amount is
not material.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other significant event took
place subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

SR BRI

BE-Z-—NE=ZA=1+—-HBLEFEE - BEIHK
K (BREEEM<2) 894560,670,0008T (==
— =% 453,333,000/ ) - AEEREEE
2RI REREREEERSH o BRE 7 5 By
N REBZEIGANTIERERFHEAESS
BN BBRARBERR MPBEAMEE
THAZEELRARERR BEXRBERKE T&
REBERKERRE-

RHEB&ER

EREBRKEFER

R-ZZE-NFNEAA —BE2EMNBQAR
BEBMNTEFEEERAT ([RMERF])
(TEFDE-—BPEERMERDEATEY
g (EM)BRAR (AIBAEMERERES
PRATD T LZHRZR AREEESBHREK
BEOEHE (EM)ARDLTAZ0%EEFE
(EBMEBEE]) UWBSE2RENAAR
#£4,945,0007T (HHER#6,204,0008 7T) ° A
BRWBEEHNE EHEE (EM)ERA
AR AERESERO%RER 2B AT I
BEECHR-Z-—NFNE=-+=BRZHH
BETZHEARGFGCEERTER

RWBE RNARACEERB LS ERMEERMT
ERZRAMzNE BERREZLAFE
HREEDEETH AAAEETERTK
AfizEMAEmERERERE -t
EERAANEHMREEEZFEE (EF) AR
RARTERBAB 2T BERTIIER -

B RERAR
R-ZZE-—NFEENA+ZH #@8MNEHF (ERE
TR —NEEHBERBREARERED—F
BEPREARFDR HFASHELREK

BREXFIREEN RBEEMREMERLEH
fBEKRER-

EREEEBRERAR
20132014 £ 15



Directors’ and Senior Management's Profiles

ESNSHREBASEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Weng Jiaxing (“Mr. Weng”), aged 38, joined our Group
in 2004 as the Chairman of Hui Hao (HK) Group Limited (“Hui
Hao Hong Kong"”) and was appointed as an executive Director
on 9 July 2012. He was responsible for exploring investment
opportunities in the PRC, formulating business strategies and
overseeing the entire business operation of our Group. Mr.
Weng was admitted to the 2008 Executive Master of Business
Administration (EMBA) course administered by Xiamen University
in December 2007. Mr. Weng has not less than 8 years of
managerial experience in pharmaceutical businesses. Prior to
joining our Group, Mr. Weng was the General Manager of Fujian
Huihao Pharmaceutical Chain Company Limited (“FHP Chain”)
from 2003 to 2004 where he was responsible for the entire
business operation of FHP Chain. Mr. Weng had been an executive
director of Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited (“Hua Xia")
during the period from 25 April 2006 to 1 August 2007 and from
26 March 2010 to 28 December 2012. Save that Mr. Weng is a
nephew of Mr. Yung Kwok Leong, a substantial shareholder and
an executive director of Hua Xia, being a Controlling Shareholder,
and a brother of Mr. Weng Jiale (M%), the controlling
shareholder of Fujian Huihao Pharmaceutical Company Limited
("FHP Company”) and FHP Chain, both being landlords of certain
premises leased by our Group, Mr. Weng is not related to other
Shareholders and our Directors. Save as disclosed above, Mr.
Weng did not hold any directorship in any other public companies
the securities of which are listed on any securities market in Hong

Kong or overseas in the last three years.
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Directors’ and Senior Management's Profiles

Mr. Chen Yong (“Mr. Chen”), aged 43 joined our Group as the
Director of President’s Office of Huihao Hong Kong in July 2006
and was appointed as an executive Director on 4 September
2012. In May 2008, Mr. Chen became the Managing Director of
Fujian Huihao Sihai Pharmaceutical Chain Company Limited* (&
BHGNEEEEHE AR L T) (“Huihao Sihai”) and was
responsible for the overall operation and management of the
Company. He became Vice Chairman of our Group in June 2011.
He has a master of Business Administration degree in Fudan
University ( L& B KXE) . Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Chen
was the Assistant to Managing Director and the manager of the
investment development department of Shanghai Cheung Kong
New Hope Enterprise Company Limited* ( LB RIHHFENES
PRA®]) from 8 October 2002 to 5 December 2005 and he was
responsible for assisting the managing director in setting direction
and goals of business operation as well as managing investment

projects.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Liang Yichi (“Mr. Liang”), aged 62, joined our Group as
an independent non-executive Director on 4 September 2012.
Mr. Liang is formerly the vice-president of Fujian University of
Traditional Chinese Medicine (in September 2012, retired from the
position as vice president) and currently a tutor to master students
of Chinese Medicines and a tutor of the integration of traditional
and western medicine (first-tier subject) doctor’s degree of the
Fujian University of Traditional Chinese Medicine. Mr. Liang was
recognized by the Ministry of Personnel of the PRC* (FRE A R
FME]AZEER) as an young and middle-aged expert in outstanding
contribution* (M EFHREBEREXK) in 1989.
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Directors’ and Senior Management's Profiles

ESNSHREBASEHE

Mr. Wong Hon Kit (“Mr. Wong”), aged 47, joined our Group
as an independent non-executive Director on 11 April 2013.
Mr. Wong obtained a Diploma in Accounting from Hong Kong
Shue Yan College in July 1991 and is currently a Certified Public
Accountant in Hong Kong. He was admitted as an associate
member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountant (now known
as Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants) and the
Association of International Accountants in the United Kingdom in
March 2000 and October 1999, respectively. Mr. Wong is currently
Responsible Officer of Greater China Paxwell Limited. He has over
10 years’ experience in working as chief financial officer, company
secretary and/or director in listed companies in Hong Kong where
he was involved in the finance and company secretarial matters
and has handled a number of corporate finance transactions
such as mergers and acquisitions, capital fund raising activities,
corporate restructuring and corporate transactions. Mr. Wong was
an executive director of Chanceton Financial Group Limited (stock
code: 8020) during the period from 21 September 2011 to 1
December 2011, which is listed on GEM. Mr. Wong has also been
appointed as a non-executive director of the Shaanxi Northwest
New Technology Industry Company Limited (stock code: 8258)
since 14 September 2012. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Wong
did not hold any directorship in any other public companies the
securities of which are listed on any securities market in Hong

Kong or overseas in the last three years.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profiles

Dr. Liu Yongping (“Dr. Liu”), aged 58, is a practicing solicitor
in Hong Kong and a consultant of a firm of solicitors in Hong
Kong. Dr. Liu has more than 20 years of experience in the capital
market and merger and acquisition legal services sector. Dr. Liu
graduated from the University of London with a master’s degree
in law in 1987 and from the University of Oxford with a doctor’s
degree in philosophy in 1994. Apart from his appointment with
the Company, Dr. Liu has been acting as an independent non-
executive director of Yue Da Mining Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (Stock code: 629), since June
2010. Dr. Liu has also been acting as an independent non-
executive director of China Forestry Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
930), since September 2012. During August 2011 and October
2012, Dr. Liu acted as an independent non-executive director of
JF Household Furnishings Limited, a company listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 776). Save as disclosed
above, Dr. Liu did not hold any directorship in any other public
companies the securities of which are listed on any securities

market in Hong Kong or overseas in the last three years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Xiang Zheng (“Ms. Xiang”), aged 52, is the General
Manager of Fujian Province Fuzhou City Huihao Pharmaceutical
Co. td" (FRREBMMEBFEEER DT ) ("Fuzhou Huihao").
Ms. Xiang was graduated from The Open University of Fujian* (&
ZEBEIE AE) majoring in Business Administration, and has
more than 20 years of operational management experience in the
pharmaceutical industry. Ms. Xiang joined our Group in December
2008. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Xiang worked in Fujian
Sanming Medicine Shareholding Co., Ltd." ({8 = BB 2 1% 5
BRAR),

from 1992 to 2008, where she served as salesperson, manager

a state-owned pharmaceutical enterprise in Sanming

of pharmaceutical department, manager of medical devices
department and vice general manager, and was mainly responsible

for managing the sales business.
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Directors’ and Senior Management's Profiles

ESNSHREBASEHE

Mr. Luo Xintian (“Mr. Luo”), aged 47, is the General Manager
of Fujian Huiming Medicine Co. Ltd* (R EEHEEGR LD
Al) (“Fujian Huiming”). Mr. Luo was graduated from Fujian
Pharmaceutical School Adult Technical College* ({B#2 BB
K A HE) majoring in Chinese Medicine, and has more than 25
years of managerial experience in the sales of pharmaceutical
products. Mr. Luo joined our Group in November 2008, and has
been the general manager of Fujian Huiming since April 2012.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Luo worked in several state-owned
pharmaceutical enterprises in Ninghua County, Jianning County
and Sanming City in Fujian Province since 1987 as salesman,
deputy manager in procurement department, deputy manager in
sales department, assistant to general manager and he was mainly
responsible for the management of the procurement and sales of

pharmaceutical products.

Mr. Chen Bing (“Mr. B. Chen"), aged 43, is the General Manager
of Putian Huihao Medicine Co. Ltd* (B2 B HEFEEFR L F)
(“Putian Huihao”). Mr. B. Chen was graduated from Northwest
College for Nationalities* (7t R R EF% ) majoring in Business
Enterprise Marketing, and has extensive operational management
experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Mr. B. Chen joined
our Group in December 2008. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. B.
Chen worked in Zhangzhou Biochemistry Pharmaceutical Group
Co. Ltd.* CEMEYLBREEBABRAF) as the sales director
from 2006 to 2007, responsible for managing the national sales
business in the PRC.

Mr. Xu Jiwang (“Mr. Xu”), aged 40, is the General Manager
of Huihao Medicine (Quanzhou) Co. Ltd* (BBIFEZ (R M)E
PR X F]) (“Quanzhou Huihao”). Mr. Xu was graduated from
Southwest Jiaotong University” (78 8 X 8 K ) specialising
in Business Administration and has extensive operational
management experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Xu
joined our Group in January 2011. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. Xu worked in Fujian Province Pharmaceutical Limited Liability
Company" (B2 BB HEBREME L F) from August 1994 to
November 2010, and served as the sales manager of the company,

responsible for managing the sales of pharmaceutical products.
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Directors’ and Senior Management's Profiles

Mr. Chen Kaiping (“Mr. K. Chen”), aged 52, is the assistant to
General Manager of Fuzhou Huihao and he is responsible for the
quality control of the company. Mr. K. Chen was graduated from
Fujian Province Pharmaceutical School” ({B2 BB EER ), and
is a qualified pharmacist. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. K. Chen
worked as manager of the quality control department in FHP
Chain and as deputy director of the quality control department
in FHP Company during the period from September 2003 to April
2008 and he was responsible for supervising the quality control of

pharmaceutical products.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Tsang Pui Yee (“Ms. Tsang”), aged 39, is appointed as
the Company Secretary of our Company on 4 September 2012.
Ms. Tsang has worked in various international accounting firms
from December 2000 to June 2008. Later in July 2008, Ms.
Tsang joined a private company as Accounting Manager before
she joined Hua Xia in July 2011. Ms. Tsang has over 8 years of
experience in finance, accounting and auditing. Ms. Tsang holds
a master’'s degree in corporate finance from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and she is a member of the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

ESENSHRERASEHE

BREEE (TMRAFEE]) 525 BMNELH
MEEYE EEQNRCEEEE -RAFTL
EEXNFEEEEER SRYXEANNE
Ko MAREER MBEFLEBE-TZ=
NAREZZER\FHNAAREAIREEFEH
BEHEENCEREEZRFEEQR 2EER
BAE BEEREESEETHF-

DFWE

EFEXE([8%L]) 3958 R-_F——F
NENBEZERAEAQAAZAAHME -BLt
B-EEEF+_AZ-_ZZT/\EXANRZH
EREMmEEMIR -EE R-F——F
tAMAEEZA BZtR=_ZZENELA
ME—BARARFEEESTBLEE-BLLH
B S REASTEEENEULLER B
ZIHEEBEBEIABLEMEBELTEN I
REBEHMAEEE.

EREEEZEBRERAR
20132014 £ 21



Corporate Governance Report
EXREGHRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
Wanjia Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) acknowledges

the need and importance of corporate governance as one of the
key elements in creating shareholders’ value. The Company is also
committed to achieving high standard of corporate governance
that can properly protect and promote the interests of all
shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability of

the Company.

As the Company was listed on 11 October 2013, the Company
had not yet adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG
Code”) as stated in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing Securities on Main Board (the “Listing Rules”) of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
during the year ended 31 March 2013.

The Company has adopted the code provisions in the CG Code
as its own code of corporate governance. Save as the deviation
from the code provision A.2.1, separation of roles of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to code provision A.2.1 as
disclosed in the section “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer”,
the board of directors (the “Board”) considers that the Company
was in compliance with all applicable code provisions set out in
the CG Code from 11 October 2013, being the date of listing of
the Company, to the date of this report.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the Company’s operation is

vested in the Board.

The Board takes responsibility to oversee all major matters
of the Company, including the formulation and approval of
all policy matters, overall strategies, internal control and risk
management systems, and monitoring of the performance
of the senior management. The directors of the Company
("Directors”) make decisions objectively in the interests of
the Company. Currently, the Board comprises five Directors,
including two executive directors and three independent

non-executive directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Weng Jiaxing (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 9 July 2012)

Mr. Chen Yong (Vice Chairman)
(appointed on 4 September 2012)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Liang Yichi (appointed on 4 September 2012)

Mr. Zhu Donghai (appointed on 4 September 2012 and
resigned on 27 February 2014)

Mr. Wong Hon Kit (appointed on 11 April 2013)

Dr. Liu Yongping (appointed on 27 February 2014)

Their biographical details and relationships among the
board members, if any are set out in the section entitled

“Directors’ and Senior Management's Profile” in the annual

report.
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Corporate Governance Report
EXREGHRS

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for
implementing day-to-day operations, business strategies
and management of the Group’s businesses to the
executive Directors, senior management and certain specific

responsibilities to the Board committees.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Weng lJiaxing
currently serves as the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company. The Board believes that vesting the roles
of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer in the same
person provides with strong and consistent leadership and
allows for effective and efficient planning an implementation

of business decisions and strategies.

The Company will, from time to time, review the
effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance structure
and consider whether any changes, including the separation

of the roles of the chairman and chief executive officer.

Appointments, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

Each of the executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors has entered into a service contract or
letter of appointment with the Company for a specific
term. Such term is subject to his re-appointment by the
Company at an annual general meeting upon such Director’s

retirement and offering himself for re-election.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, one-third
of the Directors who have been longest in office since their
last election or re-election are also subject to retirement by
rotation at the annual general meeting. All retiring directors

are eligible for re-election.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

In compliance with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, one of whom namely Mr. Wong Hon Kit possesses
the appropriate professional qualifications in accounting and
financial management. Each of the three independent non-
executive Directors has confirmed his independence of the
Company and the Company considers each of them to be
independent in accordance with the guidelines of assessing
independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Each of the three independent non-executive Directors has
signed a letter of appointment with the Company for a

specific term of three years.

Training and Support for Directors
The Company encourages the Directors to participate in
professional development courses and seminars to develop

and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Effective from 11 October 2013, the date of listing of the
Company, up to the date of this report, regulatory updates
and relevant materials on amendments of the Listing Rules
have been sent to the Directors for their awareness of the
latest development on regulatory requirements. Training

records of each Director will also be kept.
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Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance
CG Code provision A.1.1 prescribes that at least four regular
Board meetings should be held each year at approximately
quarterly intervals with active participation of a majority of
the Directors, either in person or through other electronic
means of communication.

Since the Company was listed on 11 October 2013 and
up to 31 March 2014, the Board has held six meetings. All
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
attended the meeting. The Board will schedule to have at
least four regular meetings in a year.

Attendance record of each director at the meetings of
the Board together with the meetings of the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination and Corporate Governance

ERRBRERERHESE

TEERTFURIEANIGEREE B8F
BELBTORAERESEERE  AHL
BERT - AHASHES (BoH
FRERBAEMEFBALX)EESH-

BAARR-_ZE—=F+A+—HLM
EEZE—P_TI$:H =t+—HB EF8C
BITRNRER - 2RITESRBEILHSH
TE i"jﬁﬁ‘% cEEE KGR
TRINAEHERE

RBE-Z-=%+A+—-H(LWA
HEE_Z-—NFE=A=+—-AHERK
RESHFESS SR ZERER FH

Committee during the period from 11 October 2013 (date of RiEEARECEXERZEESTRZTLHR
listing) to 31 March 2014 are set out below. HIANT o
Attendance/Number of Meetings
HERE, SRR
Nomination
and Corporate
Audit Remuneration Governance
Board Committee Committee Committee
RER
Name of directors EENE EFRE EBERE FMERE LETRERE
Executive directors BITES
Mr. Weng Jiaxing SMELE

(Chairman and (ZEFTHAEZ)

Chief Executive Officer) 6/6 N/AT 78 N/ATE 0/0
Mr. Chen Yong (Vice Chairman) R & %% (B /) 6/6 N/AT i A 0/0 N/AT i A
Independent non-executive BIFHTEE

directors
Mr. Liang Yichi R4 6/6 212 0/0 0/0
Mr. Wong Hon Kit HEREE 6/6 22 0/0 0/0
Dr. Liu Yongping * YEFHL N/ATE A N/ATE 0/0 0/0
Mr. Zhu Donghai ** REEEE 5/6 212 0/0 0/0
* No meetings were held after his appointment on 27 February * RER=—FB-—OF=F =+ tHEZT

2014 up to the date of 31 March 2014

** 5 Board meetings and 2 Audit Committee meetings were held
prior to his resignation on 27 February 2014
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Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance
The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
for the Directors to cover their liabilities arising out of

corporate activities.

Compliance with the Mode Code for Directors’
Securities Transactions

As the Company was listed on 11 October 2013, the
Company had not yet adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code"”) during
the year ended 31 March 2013.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its model
code for securities transactions by Directors. Having made
specific inquiries, all the Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code from 11 October 2013, being
the date of listing of the Company, up to the date of this

report.

Board Committees

The Board has established an Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committee (collectively “Board Committees”)
with defined terms of reference. The terms of reference
of the Board Committees are posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Board
Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 24 September
2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rule 3.2.1 of the Listing Rules and a copy of which is posted
on the website of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The

Audit Committee’s current members include:

Mr. Wong Hon Kit (Chairman)
Mr. Liang Yichi
Dr. Liu Yongping

All of the committee members are independent non-
executive Directors. The primary duties of the Audit

Committee include, but are not limited to:

(a) to review and monitor the external auditors’
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable

standard;

(b) monitoring integrity of financial statements of
the Company and the Company’s annual report
and accounts, half-year report and if prepared for

publication, quarterly reports;

(c) reviewing the Company’s financial controls, internal

control and risk management systems;

(d) reporting to the Board on the matters set out in the
code provisions as stated in Appendix 14 to the Listing

Rules.

The Audit Committee shall hold at least two regular
meetings in a year to review and discuss the interim and
annual financial statements of the Company. Additional
meetings of the Audit Committee may be held as and when

required.

The Audit Committee shall meet with the external auditor
at least twice a year. The external auditor may request a

meeting if they consider necessary.
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Since the Company was listed on 11 October 2013 and up
to 31 March 2014, the Audit Committee held two meetings.
The attendance records are set under the section headed
“Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance” in this

report.

The accounts for the year were audited by HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng whose term of office will expire upon the
forthcoming annual general meeting. In March 2012, the
practice of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng was reorganised as
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. The Audit Committee
has recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited be nominated for appointment as the
auditors of the Company at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 24
September 2013 with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rule and a copy
of which is posted on the website of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. The Remuneration Committee’s current

members include:

Mr. Wong Hon Kit (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Yong
Dr. Liu Yongping

The majority of the members are independent non-
executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee
reviews the remuneration package of the executive
Directors, independent non-executive Directors and senior
management, and makes appropriate recommendations
to the Board. Staff remuneration is determined by the
Group’s management by reference to the individual staff’s
qualifications, work experience, performance and prevailing

market conditions.
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The Remuneration Committee shall meet once during
the financial year. During the meeting, the Remuneration
Committee will review the remuneration packages of the
executive Directors, independent non-executive Directors and

senior management.

As the Company was listed on 11 October 2013, the
Remuneration Committee has not held any meeting up to 31
March 2014.

Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee
was established in 24 September 2013 with written terms
of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5.1 and D.3.1
of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rule and a copy of which
is posted on the website of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. The Nomination and Corporate Governance

Committee’s current members include:

Mr. Weng Jiaxing (Chairman)
Mr. Liang Yichi

Mr. Wong Hon Kit

Dr. Liu Yongping

The majority of the members are independent non-executive
Directors. The primary duties of the nomination and
corporate governance committee include, but are not limited

to:

(@) reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board on a regular basis and making recommendations

to the Board regarding any proposed changes;
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identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of,

individuals nominated for directorship;

making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors in
particular the chairman of the Board and the chief

executive officer of the Company; and

keeping the effectiveness of the corporate governance

and system of internal controls of the Group.

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee shall

meet once during the financial year. During the meeting,

the Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee will

review the structure and composition (including the skills,

knowledge and experience) of the Board.

As the Company was listed on 11 October 2013, nomination

and selection processes of current Directors were performed

by the shareholders/Board at the material time.

Since the Company was listed on 11 October 2013 and

up to 31 March 2014, the Nomination and Corporate

Governance Committee has not held any meeting.
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Conflict of Interest

If a Director has a conflict of interest in relation to a
transaction or proposal to be considered by the Board, the
individual is required to declare such interest and to abstain
from voting. The matter is considered at a Board meeting
attended by Directors who have no material interest in the

transaction.

The Group also adopted certain internal control policies to

manage potential conflicts of interest.

Company Secretary

Ms. Tsang Pui Yee, the company secretary of the Company,
is a full time employee of the Group and has day-to-day
knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The Company was
listed on 11 October 2013. Going forward, the company
secretary will duly comply with the relevant professional
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
The biographical details of the company secretary is set out
in the section entitled “Directors and Senior Management

Profile” in the annual report.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL
CONTROL
Financial Reporting

The Board, supported by the financial controller and the
finance and accounts department of the Company are
responsible for the preparation of accounts for each financial
period which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group. In preparing the accounts for the year
ended 31 March 2014, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently, adopted
appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and Hong Kong Accounting Standards, made adjustments
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable, and have
prepared the accounts on a going concern basis. The
Directors are also responsible for keeping proper accounting
records which reflect the financial information of the Group

with reasonable accuracy.
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External Auditor’'s Remuneration

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng has been appointed as
the Company’s external auditor since the Company’s
incorporation. The Audit Committee has been notified of
the nature and the service charges of non-audit services
performed by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng and considered
that these non-audit services have no adverse effect on the
independence of the auditor. There was no disagreement
between the Board and the Audit Committee on the
selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the

external auditor.

The remuneration paid to the Company's external auditor,
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng, in respect of audit services and

non-audit services for the year ended 31 March 2014 is set
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Amount (HK$'000)
Nature of services R#EME W (T#&ERT)
Audit services EIZRTE 850
Non-audit services EEZ RIS 2,169
Total &5t 3,019

The non-audit services fee was related to the listing of the

Company's shares incurred during the year.

Internal Control

The Board has the responsibility to maintain an effective
internal control system in order to safeguard the Group's
assets and shareholders’ interests, and review and
monitor the effectiveness of the internal control and risk
management systems on a regular basis to ensure that the

systems in place are adequate.
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During the year under review, the Company engaged
external independent consultants to conduct a review of the
internal control system of the Group in order to maintain
high standards of corporate governance. The Board has also
itself conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group and is of the view that the
Company has taken all reasonable steps to establish a proper

internal control system.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investors’ understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Group also recognises
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which enable shareholders and

investors to make appropriate investment decisions.

The members of the Board, Board Committees and the
external auditor are present to answer shareholders’
questions in the annual general meeting of the Company.
Meeting circulars are distributed to all shareholders before
the annual general meeting and special general meetings in
accordance with the timeline requirement as laid down in
the Listing Rules and the bye-laws of the Company. All the
resolutions proposed to be approved at the general meetings
will be taken by poll and poll voting results will be published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company

after the meetings.

As a channel to promote effective communication, the
Group maintains a website where information on the
Company's announcements, financial information and
other information are posted. Shareholders and investors
may write directly to the Company at its principal place of

business in Hong Kong with any inquiries.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the
Company, such as telephone number, fax number, email
address and postal address, in order to enable them to make
any query that they may have with respect to the Company.
They can also send their enquiries to the Board through
these means. In addition, shareholders can contact the share
registrar of the Company, if they have any enquires about

their shareholdings.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be
voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and

the Company after each shareholder meeting.

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company, the Board may
whenever it thinks fit call special general meetings, and the
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary, to require
a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition,
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the

deposit of such requisition.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents since incorporation on 9 July 2012 and up to 31
March 2014.
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Report of the Directors
E58WRS

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Wanjia Group Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) has pleasure in presenting to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) its report
together with the audited financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2014.

DATE OF INCORPORATION
The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 9 July

2012 under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
by way of introduction on 11 October 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company while its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in pharmaceutical wholesales
and distribution and pharmaceutical retail chain business in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). Details of the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 26 to the

consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group's affairs as at 31 March
2014 are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages
58 to 187 of this report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2014.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last three financial years, as extracted from the
audited consolidated financial statements, is set out on page 188
of this report. The summary does not form part of the audited

consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group did not invest in any investment property during the
year. Details of the movements in investment properties of the
Group during the year are set out in note 22 to the consolidated

financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group acquired property, plant and equipment at cost of
approximately HK$5.263 million during the year. Details of the
movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial

statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the Company's share capital during
the year are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity on page 64 respectively.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association, or the laws of Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-

rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2014, there were no purchase,
sale or redemption of the Company's listed securities by the

Company or any of its subsidiaries.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The Group's largest customer accounted for approximately 8.13%
of the Group's turnover and the Group’s five largest customers in

aggregate accounted for approximately 25.39%.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the aggregate amount
of purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers
represented approximately 34.57% of the Group’s total value
of purchases. The Group's largest supplier accounted for

approximately 11.55% of the Group's total value of purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders, which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had any interest in the share

capital of the five largest customers and suppliers of the Group.
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the year

and up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Weng Jiaxing (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 9 July 2012)

Mr. Chen Yong (Vice Chairman) (appointed on 4 September 2012)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Liang Yichi (appointed on 4 September 2012)

Mr. Zhu Donghai (appointed on 4 September 2012 and
resigned on 27 February 2014)

Mr. Wong Hon Kit (appointed on 11 April 2013)

Dr. Liu Yongping (appointed on 27 February 2014)

In accordance with Article 84 of the Company's Articles of
Association, Mr. Weng Jiaxing and Mr. Chen Yong, the executive
directors of the Company, will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting. All other Directors will continue in office.

The biographical details of the directors and senior management
are set on pages 16 to 21 of this annual report. Details of the
emoluments of the directors and the five highest paid individuals
are set out in Notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial

statements, respectively.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the

independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Weng Jiaxing, the executive Director of the Company and
chairman of the Board has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of 3 years commencing on 4
September 2012 which will continue thereafter until terminated
by either party giving to the other party not less than 3 month’s

notice in writing.

Mr. Chen Yong has been appointed as an executive Director by
way of a letter of appointment with the Company for a terms of
3 year commencing from 4 September 2012 which will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other

party not less than 3 month’s notice in writing.

Mr. Liang Yichi and Mr. Zhu Donghai have been appointed
as independent non-executive Directors by way of letters of
appointment with the Company for a term of 3 years commencing
from 4 September 2012 which will continue thereafter until either
the independent non-executive Director or the Company may
terminate the agreement by giving the other party not less than 3

months’ notice in writing.

Mr. Wong Hon Kit has been appointed as independent non-
executive Directors by way of letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of 3 years commencing from 11 April 2013
which will continue thereafter until either the independent non-
executive Director or the Company may terminate the agreement

by giving the other party not less than 3 months’ notice in writing.

Dr. Liu Yongping has been appointed as independent non-
executive Directors by way of letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of 3 years commencing from 27 February
2014 which will continue thereafter until either the independent
non-executive Director or the Company may terminate the
agreement by giving the other party not less than 3 months’

notice in writing.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has any service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the heading “Continuing connected
transactions”, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.

REMUNERATION POLICY
The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee and is based on merit,

qualifications and competence of employees.

The remuneration policies of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee having regard to the Group’s operating

results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES

AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS

ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

(a) Directors’ interests and short positions in the
securities of the Company and its associated
corporations
As at 31 March 2014, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company in the
shares of the Company (“Shares”), underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong, the
“SFO")) which will have to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or which will be required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein
or which will be required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing

Rules, were as follows:

(i) Interest in shares of the Company

ESRFEFRTHRAERFLAFTRE
HEZEEZKG - HERRDRR
HECER

(a)

EERFLAFTREMABZIEZESZ
HRRKE
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(i) FLXFZRHER

Approximate
percentage of

Number the total

Name of director Nature of interest of shares Position issued shares

HEBTERM

HmEZEN

EElR RBaMHE Bin& A ) -§ i3 B

Mr. Weng lJiaxing Personal interest 281,250 Long 0.04%

HMEEE PN 281,250 e 0.04%

Mr. Chen Yong Personal interest 80,000 Long 0.01%

PRE 4 PN 3 80,000 #R 0.01%
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(ii) Interest in issued share capital of the Company’s

associated corporation
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(i) RELFHEBZIEMZIERTREZ
s

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the associated
corporation’s

Name of associated Capacity/Nature of Number issued share

Name of director corporation interest of shares Position capital
HHBERZ

ERTREZ

¢ 334 HHEERE s #EHE BH#E B BRERHESL
Mr. Weng Jiaxing Hua Xia (Note 1) Beneficial interest 8,106,250 Long 0.70%
SMEEE £5 (K1) BnfEs 8,106,250 #e 0.70%
Mr. Chen Yong Hua Xia (Note 1) Beneficial interest 400,000 Long 0.03%
REEE £5 (K1) Enfks 400,000 #e 0.03%

Note 1: Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited (“Hua Xia")
held the entire issued share capital of Greatly
Wealth Global Group Limited (”Greatly Wealth”),
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
("BVI") with limited liability, which is in turn interest
in 411,917,648 shares of the Company (representing
63.53% of the issued share capital of the Company).
Therefore, Hua Xia is an associated corporation of the
Company for the purposes of the SFO.

(b) Substantial shareholders’ interest and short

positions in shares and underlying shares.

As at 31 March 2014, other than the interests of a director
or chief executive of the Company as disclosed under the
heading “Directors’ and chief executive’s interest in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations” above, the following persons
(not being a Director or the chief executive officer of the
Company) have an interest or a short position in Shares or
underlying Shares which would be required to be disclosed
to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or will
be, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other
member of the Group:
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Long position in shares of the Company (i) FoLFEEKRMAZEFER
Approximate
percentage of
Number the total
Name of shareholder Capacity Position of shares issued shares
HERTERG
REzEn
BRREE HE 5% ' i H Bt
Hua Xia (Note 1) Interested in controlled Long 411,917,648 63.53%
corporation
EE (M) REZFEENERS Ha 411,917,648 63.53%
Greatly Wealth (Note 1) Beneficial owner Long 411,917,648 63.53%
K3 (BT BEREBA 3} 411,917,648 63.53%
Mr. Yung Kwok Leong Interested in controlled Long 24,192,100 3.73%
(Note 2) corporation
SEzEE (MEE2) REZFEENERS 3} 24,192,100 3.73%
Beneficial owner Long 47,009,375 7.25%
BERERA wr 47,009,375 7.25%
Marshal International Interested in controlled Long 24,192,100 3.73%
Investments Limited corporation
(Note 2)
BFEBRREARQTA REEVEENER wr 24,192,100 3.73%
(HMta£2)
Easeglory Holdings Beneficial owner Long 24,192,100 3.73%
Limited (Note 2)
ZRERBRLQT BERERA wE 24,192,100 3.73%
(HMt=£2)
Mrs. Yung Muk Ying Interest of spouse Long 71,201,475 10.98%
(Note 3)
HARE Lz (KHFEE3) BB 3} 71,201,475 10.98%
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Greatly Wealth is a company incorporated in the BVI
with limited liability which is wholly and beneficially
owned by Hua Xia. By virtue of the SFO, Hua Xia is
deemed to be interested in the entire 411,917,648
shares held by the Greatly Wealth.

Easeglory Holdings Limited (“Easeglory”) is a company
incorporation in the BVI with limited liabilities which is
wholly and beneficially owned by Marshal International
Investments Limited (“Marshal”), a company
incorporated in the BVI with limited liability and is
wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Yung Kwok Leong
("Mr. Yung"”). By virtue of the SFO, both Marshal and
Mr. Yung are deemed to be interested in the entire
24,192,100 shares held by Easeglory.

Mrs. Yung Muk Ying, the spouse of Mr. Yung, is
deemed to be interested in 71,201,475 shares held
by Mr. Yung in person or through his controlled
corporations under the SFO.

Long position in shares of the associated

corporation
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

Number of  the associated
shares in corporation’s
Name of associated ~ Name of the associated issued
corporation registered owner Capacity Position corporation share capital
REkEE
BERTREH
RAEREE ]2
HEEERE BRRAEARE L4 B FrislR BB #naak
Greatly Wealth Hua Xia Beneficial owner Long 200 shares 100%
of US$1 each
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, the
directors of the Company were not aware of any other
person (other than the directors and chief executive
of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTOR’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SECURITIES

Apart from as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests in shares, underlying shared and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations” above, at no
time since incorporation of the Company were right to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or of any other body corporate granted to any
directors or their respective spouses or children under 18 years
of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the directors, their respective spouse
or children under 18 years of age to acquire such rights in any

other body corporate.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Certain connected transactions which are significant are also
disclosed as related party transactions (see note 40 to the

consolidated financial statements).
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 24 September 2013, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) whereby the Board can
grant options for the subscription of our shares to the employees,
managerial staff and senior employees and those other persons
that the Board considers that they will contribute or have
contributed to the Group (the “Participants”) as described in
the Share Option Scheme in order to serve as compliment and
to reciprocate their contribution to the Group. The maximum
number of shares that can be issued according to the Share
Option Scheme was 64,840,530 shares, which is equivalent to
10% of the issued capital of the Company after completion of the
Listing on the Stock Exchange. The number of options that may
be granted pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme
shall not exceed 10% of the issued shares immediately after
the completion of the Listing. Unless otherwise approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting, the number of
shares that may be granted to a Participant under the options shall
not exceed 1% within any 12-month period (other than those
granted to the substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company or the independent non-executive Directors
or any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules)), or the total number of shares that may be granted under
the options to the substantial shareholders of the Company or
the independent non-executive Directors or any of their respective
associates shall not exceed 0.1% of the shares in issue of the
Company from time to time. There is no minimum period that the
options must be held before they become exercisable, and the
options granted shall be exercised within the period decided by
the Board; however no options shall be exercised 10 years after
they have been granted. The exercise price of the option shall
be the higher of (a) the closing price of the shares on the daily
quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b)
the average closing price of the shares on the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (c) nominal value of the share.
Each grantee shall pay a consideration of HK$1.00 at the time the
option is granted. The Share Option Scheme shall take effect from
the date it is adopted and shall remain effective within a period of
10 years from that date.
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Since the Share Option Scheme was adopted, no options have

been granted up to the date of this report.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group had entered into a number of transactions with
connected parties which, upon the listing of the Shares on the
Stock Exchange, became connected persons of the Company
under the Listing Rules. These transactions are continuing
connected transactions exempt from the independent
shareholder’s approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions are as follows:

Rental agreement with Fujian Huihao Pharmaceutical
Chain Company Limited (“FHP Chain")

Tenancy Agreement 1

Fujian Province Fuzhou City Huihao Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd
(“Fuzhou Huihao”), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into two tenancy agreements on 28 December
2009 for a term of five years with an aggregate rental fee of
RMB146,634 per quarter from 1 January 2010 to 31 December
2014 with FHP Chain for Property 1 and the Property 2 which are
for used as office and warehouse of Fuzhou Huihao. As disclosed
in the announcement of Hua Xia dated 10 September 2012, new
tenancy agreement is entered into and terminated all the above
previous tenancy agreements between Fuzhou Huihao and FHP
Chain.

On 10 September 2012, Fujian Hihao and FHP Chain entered
a new tenancy agreement (“Tenancy Agreement 1”) for the
rental of (i) Level 1 and Level 4 of the office building located at
No. 8 Huihao Road, Shangjie Town, Minhou Xian, Fujian Province,
the PRC (the

approximately 1,336 square meter (“sq.m.”); and (ii) Levels 1

“Property 1”) with a gross floor area ("GFA")

to 3 of the warehouse building located at No. 8 Huihao Road,
Shangjie Town, Minhou Xian, Fujian, the PRC (the “Property 2")
with a GFA of approximately 9,957 sq.m.. The term of the lease
is from 10 September 2012 to 31 March 2015 with a rental of
RMB10,688 per month for the Property 1 and RMB49,785 per
month for the Property 2 and is renewable upon the signing of a

new rental agreement.
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Tenancy Agreement 2

Fujian Huihao Sihai Pharmaceutical Chain Company Limited
("Huihao Sihai”) a subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
tenancy agreement on 28 December 2009 for a terms of five years
with an aggregate rental fee of RMB64,188 per quarter from 1
January 2010 to 31 December 2014 with FHP Chain for Property 3
and Property 4 form part, which is used as office and warehouse
of Huihao Sihai. As disclosed in the announcement of Hua Xia
dated 10 September 2012, new tenancy agreement is entered
into and terminated all the above previous tenancy agreements
between Huihao Sihai and FHP Chain.

On 10 September 2012, Huihao Sihai and FHP Chain entered
a new tenancy agreement (“Tenancy Agreement 2") for the
rental of (i) Level 3 of the office building located at No.8 Huihao
Road, Shangjie Town, Minhou Xian, Fujian Province, the PRC
(the “Property 3") with a GFA of approximately 600 sq.m.; and
(ii) Level 4 of the warehouse building located on No.8 Huihao
Road, Shangjie Town, Minhou Xian, Fujian Province, the PRC (the
"Property 4") with a GFA of approximately 3,319 sq.m.. The term
of the lease is from 10 September 2012 to 31 March 2015 with a
rental of RMB4,800 per month for the Property 3 and RMB16,595
per month for the Property 4 and is renewable upon the signing

of the new rental agreement.
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FHP Chain Company was held as to 50% of its issued share capital
by Mr. Weng Jiale, who is a brother of Mr. Weng Jiaxing (“Mr.
Weng"), an executive Director of the Group and a nephew of Mr.
Yung, a substantial shareholder and an executive director of Hua
Xia. Therefore, FHP Chain is an associate of Mr. Weng and Mr.
Yung, and is therefore a connected person of the Company under
Rule 14A.11(4) of the Listing Rules

The annual cap for the Group's total transaction amount with
FHP Chain contemplated under the Tenancy Agreement 1 is
RMB725,676 (equivalent to approximately HK$914,300) and
Tenancy Agreement 2 is RMB256,740 (equivalent to approximately
HK$323,500) for the year ending 31 March 2014. During the
year ended 31 March 2014, the Group paid rental charge of
RMB725,676 (equivalent to approximately HK$914,300) in
respect of the Tenancy Agreement 1 and RMB256,740 (equivalent
to approximately HK$323,500) in respect of the Tenancy

Agreement 2.

Purchase agreement with a connected person

Hui Hao (HK) Group Limited (“Huihao Hong Kong”), an
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a purchase agreement on 26 April 2012 for a term of three
years ending 31 March 2015 with Fujian Huihao Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“FHP Company”). Upon reviewing the
latest trading pattern and the actual purchase amount of the
pharmaceutical products, Huihao Hong Kong and FHP Company
entered into a new purchase agreement (the “Purchase
Agreement”) on 19 September 2013 which superseded the
remaining term of the previous purchase agreement. Pursuant to
the Purchase Agreement, Huihao Hong Kong Group have agreed
to purchase certain pharmaceutical products from FHP Company

for a term of two years ending 31 March 2015.
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FHP Company was held as to 55% of its issued share capital
by Mr. Weng Jiale, who is a brother of Mr. Weng, an executive
Director of the Group and a nephew of Mr. Yung, a substantial
shareholder and an executive director of Hua Xia. Therefore,
FHP company is an associate of Mr. Weng and Mr. Yung, and
is therefore a connected person of the Company under Rule
14A.11(4) of the Listing Rules

The annual cap for the Group’s total transaction amount with FHP
Company contemplated under the agreement is HK$1.93 million
for the year ending 31 March 2014. During the year ended 31
March 2014, the Group total actual purchase transaction amount
approximately HK$1.858 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB1.475 million).

Sales agreements with connected persons

(i) Sales agreement with FHP Company
Huihao Hong Kong entered into a sales agreement on 26
April 2012 for a term of three years ending 31 March 2015
with Fujian Huihao Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“FHP
Company”). Upon reviewing the latest trading pattern and
the actual purchase amount of the pharmaceutical products,
Huihao Hong Kong and FHP Company entered into a new
sales agreement (the “FHP Sales Agreement”) on 19
September 2013 which superseded the remaining term of
the previous sales agreement. Pursuant to the FHP Sales
Agreement, Huihao Hong Kong Group has agreed to sell and
deliver certain pharmaceutical products from FHP Company

for a term of two years ending 31 March 2015.
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(i)

52

The annual cap for the Group's total transaction amount
with FHP Company contemplated under the agreement is
HK$2.32 million for the year ending 31 March 2014. During
the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group total actual
sales transaction amount approximately HK$1.686 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB1.338 million).

Sales agreement with Ally Health International
Limited (“Ally Health”)

Huihao Hong Kong entered into a sales agreement (the
“Hospital Sales Agreement”) on 17 September 2012 for a
term of three years ending 31 March 2015 with Ally Health.

Ally Health, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hua Xia, which is
a Controlling Shareholder of the Company that is interested
in approximately 63.5% of the equity of the Company.
Ally Health is also the holding company of Edward Hospital
Company Limited (“Edward Hospital”) and Jiaxing City
Shuguang Western and Chinese Composite Hospital
Both
Edward Hospital and Jiaxing Shuguang Hospital are the

Company Limited (“Jiaxing Shuguang Hospital”).

subsidiary of Hua Xia, which is a Controlling Shareholder
of the Company, had an indirect equity interest of 55% in
Edward Hospital and Jiaxing Shuguang Hospital. Ally Health,
Edward Hospital and Jiaxing Shuguang are an associate
of Hua Xia and are therefore a connected person of the

Company under Rule 14A.11(4) of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap for the Group's total transaction amount
with Ally Health contemplated under the agreement is
HK$9.08 million for the year ending 31 March 2014. During
the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group total actual
sales transaction amount approximately HK$3.981 million

(equivalent to approximately RMB3.160 million).
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Details of these continuing connected transactions are
contained in the Prospectus of the Company dated 30
September 2013. The Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of

the Listing Rules in so far as they are applicable.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company,
Mr. Liang Yichi, Mr. Wong Hon Kit and Dr. Liu Yongping
have, for the purpose of Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules,
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that such continuing connected transactions, for

the reporting period, have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the

Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favorable to the Group than terms available to or from

(as appropriate) independent third parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transactions and on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interest of the shareholders of

the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on the
Group's continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Review
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The Company's auditors have issue their
unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of
the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company as applied the code provisions set out in the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Since its listing on the Stock
Exchange, the Company has complied with the code provisions
of the CG Code for the year ended 31 March 2014, save for the
exceptions explained in the Corporate Governance Report in this

report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report and based on publicly available
information and the best knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has sufficient public float as required under Rule 8.08 of

the Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period

are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITORS

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2014 were audited by HLB Hodgson Imply Cheng. Since
March 2012, the practice of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng was
reorganized as HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. Thus HLB
Hodgson Imply Cheng retired as the auditors of the Company
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited was being eligible, offer themselves for

reappointment.

On behalf of the Board

Weng Jiaxing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2014
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Independent Auditors’ Report
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31/F, Gloucester Tower &b

The Landmark IR
Bt 3) 3
H LB i A 1 Pedder Sreet \BIT1188
odgson Impe en
9 pey 9 Central B ES

Hong Kong HELTITRE3E

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED BEESEERARLATZERR

(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wanjia
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 58
to 187, which comprise the consolidated and the Company
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2014, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.
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15 X1 1% BX 6h ¥R &5

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 June 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meBmRE

L fth F B W&

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE=—Z—F=A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—Z—mE ===
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
M =E THET FET
Turnover BEH 9 2,096,455 1,885,369
Cost of sales §H & AR (1,906,991) (1,721,210)
Gross profit EX ] 189,464 164,159
Other revenue Hibw = 10 7,543 7,729
Other income HAgg A 11 746 1,078
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX (70,524) (61,397)
Administrative expenses THRX (47,033) (46,802)
Profit from operations BEEERN 12 80,196 64,767
Finance costs MBER 13 (6,015) (4,090)
Profit before taxation PRI AR T 74,181 60,677
Taxation BiIR 16 (25,113) (18,772)
Profit for the year EEFERF 49,068 41,905
Other comprehensive income EEEREMBEKA 0K
for the year, net of income tax: FRiGRIE -
Items that may be reclassified ARARZET 7 EEIE
subsequently to profit or loss: ZHEE :
Exchange differences on translating BREBIINCEELZ
foreign operations B+ =% 4,475 1,502
Total comprehensive income EEEREBARE
for the year 53,543 43,407
WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
mOBERNHEMMEENEA

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE2—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

2014 2013
—Z—mEF = — 3
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M 5 THET FHET
Profit for the year attributable to: FEEEEERF:
Owners of the Company KATEEB A 48,920 41,763
Non-controlling interests FERER 148 142
49,068 41,905
Total comprehensive income BEFFE2EKAREE:
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company KATEE A 53,387 43,262
Non-controlling interests FERER 156 145
53,543 43,407
Earnings per share attributable to ZFAFHBAEESERET:
owners of the Company:
— Basic (HK cents per share) —EHAKR (ZREAM) 19 7.54 6.44
— Diluted (HK cents per share) — 58 (ZRBW) 19 7.54 6.44

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
OUBIANIRR

As at 31 March 2014 R=Z—FE=H=+—H

2014 2013
—ZT—mE —E—=
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
M & FHET FET
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME- -BRERZE 20 12,569 10,926
Prepaid lease payments FENHEEMRE 21 4,509 4,612
Investment properties REYE 22 8,306 8,157
Goodwill [k 23 785,521 785,521
810,905 809,216
Current assets mENEE
Inventories "&8 24 128,541 119,570
Trade and other EZRHEMEWRIER
receivables and deposits ®E 25 427,984 427,399
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary ~ FEUX — B[R R M B 2 T FIE 27 2,956 448
Amount due from the immediate FEUN B ZIE R A R FRIE
holding company 28 5 5
Financial assets at fair value RAVEEEERKRER
through profit or loss ZEmMEE 29 1,259 =
Pledged bank deposits EIRAEITER 30 17,431 3,609
Cash and cash equivalents RekHESEEEE 30 43,638 30,676
621,814 581,707
Current liabilities mEAE R
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMENKIE 31 283,080 306,758
Amount due to the ultimate B RAEZERARRE
holding company 32 4,008 889,426
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries NG E I PNGIE S 33 1,032 1,062
Amounts due to non-controlling P — M B AR EER
shareholders of a subsidiary IR R FRIE 33 134 =
Bank borrowings RITEE 34 88,088 50,672
Tax payables FE {3 Fi 18 10,654 9,804
386,996 1,257,722
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE(AR)BE 234,818 (676,015)
Total assets less current liabilities HEHRERRBHAR 1,045,723 133,201
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
ORI R

As at 31 March 2014 R=F—MFE=F=+—H

2014 2013
—E—mE —E—=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i 5 THET F#ET
Capital and reserves BE KGR

Share capital % 2% 36 6,484 1
Reserves (ERE] 37 1,038,823 132,761

Equity attributable to owners of BATEE AEMLER
the Company 1,045,307 132,762
Non-controlling interests R 416 439
Total equity 4R 1,045,723 133,201

The consolidated financial statement were approved and

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2014

and signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Weng Jiaxing

Executive Director

Mr. Chen Yong

Executive Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

B 5 1A iR &

As at 31 March 2014 R=Z—FE=H=+—H

2014 2013
—ZE—MmE —E2—=
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
M =E THET THET
Non-current assets FERENEE
Investment in subsidiaries RB AR ZRE 26 6,484 =
Property, plant and equipment M- -BERRE 7 =
6,491 -
Current assets mEEE
Other receivables and deposits HihEWRERIRSE 25 113 2,036
Cash and cash equivalents RekREeEHEER 30 102 10
215 2,046
Current liabilities g ih-Ki
Amount due to the ultimate e R ARIERR A B FRIE
holding company 32 405 1,139
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAF B 2 Bl RIE 33 20,666 8,312
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary e — R E R M8 A Bl : I8 33 5 15
Accruals and other payables FEitE R R HE BN IR 31 2,577 3
23,653 9,469
Net current liabilities mEBEERE (23,438) (7,423)
Total assets less current liabilities SEHERTBHER (16,947) (7,423)

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Statement of Financial Position
B #%5 AR 3% |

As at 31 March 2014 R=F—MFE=F=+—H

2014 2013
—Z—mEF =
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
M =E THET FET
Capital and reserves BEER &R

Share capital (&N 36 6,484 1
Reserves R 37 (23,431) (7,424)

Total equity attributable to ERFHEA
owners of the Company BLESEE (16,947) (7,423)

The financial statement were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 25 June 2014 and signed on its behalf
by:

Mr. Weng Jiaxing Mr. Chen Yong

Executive Director Executive Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ROBREER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

EXCE EPN I
Non-
Share Share Other  Contribution  Translation Statutory Retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve earning Sub-total interests Total
B* BiHiER KGR HRE R EREE EERR REEN bt FRERES it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL TEL TR TR FEL TEL TR TER FEL FER
(Note 36) (Note (a)) (Note (b)) (Note (c)) (Note (d)) (Note (e)
(Kt3E3e) (KzE(@) (RizE(b)) (W) (HzE(d)) (HizE(e))
At 1 April 2012 R=B-—£MA-AH = = = = 9,972 13,079 66,448 89,499 294 89,793
Profit for the year AEERR - - - - - - 41,763 41,763 142 41,905
Other comprehensive income AEEREARA
for the year - - - - 1,499 - - 1,499 3 1,502
Total comprehensive income AEERZEUAAE
for the year - - - - 1,499 - 41,763 43,262 145 43,407
Issue of shares BARH 1 - - - - - - 1 - 1
Transfer to statutory reserve ERZIERE - - - - - 5,731 (5,731) = = =
At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 R-B-=§=8=+-HK
—E-=EMA-AH 1 - - - 11,471 18,810 102,480 132,762 439 133,201
Profit for the year AEERR - - - - - - 48,920 48,920 148 49,068
Other comprehensive income AEEREERA
for the year - - - - 4,467 - - 4,467 8 4,475
Total comprehensive income AEEREUAAE
for the year - - - - 4,467 - 48,920 53,387 156 53,543
Effect of reorganisation EAyE 6,483 - (6,483) 866,811 - - - 866,811 - 866,811
Share Issuing expenses BIRBEX - (7,653) - - - - - (7,653) - (7,653)
Dividend paid to non-controlling HFERRERARE
shareholders - - - - - - - - (179) (179)
Transfer to statutory reserve ERTITERE - - - - - 10,318 (10,318) = = =
At 31 March 2014 RZS-ME=A=+-A 6,484 (7,653) (6,483) 866,811 15,938 29,128 141,082 1,045,307 416 1,045,723
Notes: B &
(a) Share premium (a) BHERE

#7,653,0008 T 2 S REIEAQAARBR=-F
— =+ AT REBBBRAERBFHARLD

The amount of approximately HK$7,653,000 represents the
capitalised listing expenses arised from the listing of the shares of

(b)

64

the Company on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 11 October 2013.

Other reserve

Upon the completion of the reorganisation on 3 September 2013,
the amount of approximately HK$6,483,000 represented the
difference between the Company’s share of nominal value of the
paid-up capital of the subsidiaries acquired over the Company’s cost
of acquisition of the subsidiaries under common control upon the
reorganisation as detailed in the prospectus of the Company dated
30 September 2013.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE =& —

Notes: — continued

(c)

(d)

(e)

Contribution reserve

Capitalisation of the outstanding amount of approximately
HK$866,811,000 due from Timely Hero Enterprises Limited (“Timely
Hero”) to Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited (“Hua Xia”) on 3
September 2013 in consideration of (i) the allotment and issue
1 share of US$1 in the share capital of Timely Hero to Luxuriant
Expand, credited as fully paid up, at the direction of Hua Xia; and
(i) the allotment and issue of a total of 100 shares of US$1 each in
the share capital of Luxuriant Expand, all credited as fully paid up,
to Hua Xia in consideration of its receipt of 1 share in Timely Hero
at the direction of Hua Xia. Details of the reorganisation were set
in the section
in the

out in the paragraph headed “The Reorganisation”
headed “Corporate history, development and Reorganisation”
prospectus of the Company dated 30 September 2013.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 4.

Statutory reserve

As stipulated by the relevant People’s Republic of China (“PRC")
laws and regulations, the subsidiaries of the Company establishing
in the PRC shall set aside 10% of its net profit after taxation for the
statutory surplus reserve fund (except where the reserve balances
has reached 50% of the subsidiaries’ paid up capital). The reserve
fund can only be used, upon approval by the Board of Directors and
by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated losses or increase
capital.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

meMERNER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—ZT—mE —E—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET F&T
Operating activities BEEB
Profit before taxation BR B A& A 74,181 60,677
Adjustments for: FEIER
Interest income FE g A (695) (632)
Interest expenses FMEREX 6,015 4,090
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TN ERIE 188 182
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME -BERZEBINE 3,653 3,932
Provision for impairment loss on trade and B 5 kH A ERRIEBERE
other receivables EEEE 518 989
Reversal of impairment loss of trade and g 5 Rk H i EWFIE ZRE
other receivables EiE e (746) (476)
Realised gain on financial asset at fair value RATEEETEZREEZ
through profit or loss tREEZERKS (44) =
Change in fair value of investment properties REMENFLEEES - (492)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HENE BERZBE2ZEER
equipment 26 276
Operating cash flows before movements EEEREHNEBERARA
in working capital 83,096 68,546
Increase in inventories FEEm (6,803) (13,355)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other ESNEMERRERZS
receivables and deposits A () 7,398 (125,997)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables E 5 & H b+ FE
CR ) /18 (29,303) 31,711
(Increase)/decrease in amount due from FEW — R[5 2 Y 8 X )
a fellow subsidiary FRE (&) A (2,502) 2,971
Increase in amount due from the immediate e B 8 1 iR A B FRIE IS
holding company - (5)
Increase in amount due to non-controlling B — R E QR FEER
shareholders of a subsidiary IR R 2 SRR IE AN 134 =
Decrease in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries — FEAT[E Z Kt B A T 5% & R 2> (30) (700)
(Decrease)/increase in amount due to the FEA B 4242 IR X B FRIE
ultimate holding company CRA) /1 (18,607) 8,462
Cash generated from/(used in) operations X¥BME/ (A #EE 33,383 (28,367)
Withholding tax (paid)/refund (BF) BEEMDH (2,383) 612
PRC enterprise income tax paid EHMPEILEFSEF (22,058) (19,130)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating #EEEHRE (FA)R&
activities B8 8,942 (46,885)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

o = e
ROIRENER
For the year ended 31 March 2014 B2 =—F—ME=F=+—HILFE
2014 2013
—Z—MmE —Z =
HK$000 HK$'000
T#ET FET
Investing activities BEEE
Interest received 2 WF & 695 632
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through BERAFEEEEZKREEZ
profit or loss TREE (54,176) =
Proceeds from disposal of financial asset HERATFEEEERREEZ
at fair value through profit or loss ERIEEMSNIE 52,960 =
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE BMEKRKRE (5,263) (2,216)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and Hj%%% HMERBEZRE
equipment hig 144 _
Purchase of prepaid lease payments ﬂﬁﬁﬁ'f‘ﬁﬂiaw\ B - (60)
Proceeds from disposal of held-to-maturity HEREZEBREZMBRIE
investment - 123
Net cash used in investing activities BREZHFMAR&SRSE (5.640) (1,521)
Financing activities MEEE
Interest paid ERFIE (6,015) (4,090)
Issue of shares BITRGD - 1
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders ENFEZERBERRE (179) =
Share issuing expenses BITRMBEAX (7,653) =
(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank deposits SIRBETER (Em) OED (13,772) 19,238
Proceeds from new bank borrowings HRITIERFTEFRIE 88,193 53,138
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEX (51,656) (39,048)
Net cash generated from financing activities BB EEHFMESHE&BEHE 8,918 29,239
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HeRAESEHRAE
cash equivalents | (D) B 12,220 (19,167)
Cash and cash equivalents FMZReRT&EERA
at the beginning of the year 30,676 48,480
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNEERESH oL 742 1,363
Cash and cash equivalents FRZBASRBEEFERE
at the end of the year 43,638 30,676
Analysis of balances of cash and cash ReRBeSFEHFEARBRIM
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBRESEEER 43,638 30,676
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these B EAZEFREMBERRZ—BD -
consolidated financial statements.
BEESERERARLR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted Company
with limited liabilities in the Cayman Islands. The address of
the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information of the

annual report.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution and pharmaceutical retain chain
business in the PRC. The activities of its principal subsidiaries
are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The Company’s shares have been listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange since 11 October 2013. The Company's
immediate holding company is Greatly Wealth Global Group
Limited (“Greatly Wealth”), a company incorporated in
British Virgin Islands. Greatly Wealth is a directly wholly-
owned subsidiary of Hua Xia, a company incorporated in
Cayman Islands on 28 May 2001 as an exempted company
with limited liability, of which are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM") of the Stock Exchange and it is
the ultimate holding company of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is the same as functional
currency of the Company, and the functional currency of the
most of the subsidiaries is Renminbi (“RMB"). The Board of
Directors considered that it is more appropriate to present
the consolidated financial statements in HK$ as the shares
of the Company are listed on the Stock Exchange. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of HK$ (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE2—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

REORGANISATION

In the preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares

on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, the Group

underwent the reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”), as a

result of which the Company became the holding company

of the subsidiaries comprising the Group. The Reorganisation

included the following principal steps:

(a)

incorporation of Luxuriant Expand on 10 April 2012
and allotment and issue of 100 ordinary shares of

Luxuriant Expand to Hua Xia at par on 4 July 2012;

incorporation of the Company on 9 July 2012 in the
Cayman Islands and transfer of the incorporation
share from Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

to Greatly Wealth at nil consideration;

acquisition of 1 ordinary share, representing the
entire issued share capital in Timely Hero, by
Luxuriant Expand from Hua Xia on 3 September
2013 in consideration of the allotment and issue of
200 shares of US$1 each in Luxuriant Expand, all
credited as fully paid up, to Hua Xia;

Ed
REBARLAZRORBAERLE
AEBETEA(NEA]D BRAQT
BABERAEEZH B QR ZZERAT -
EARBEEEUATERSR:

RZBE——FNA+HFMRILE
m YR =—ZFE—-——F+tBNHZHE
EmEETHRENETEMAVI00R

A

R-ZZE-—ZFtANBEREHSE
M A AT W HCodan Trust
Company (Cayman) Limited & A 2
EEEZEIMRLRND

EMR-—Z—=FAA=0@#E
BB REES IS BHITRANIR
ZER REAMEERBERET
EI200R B REEI1ZETHEZIA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ=ZF—

ME=A=+—RILFE

2. REORGANISATION - continued

(d)

capitalisation of the outstanding amount of
HK$866,810,761 due from Timely Hero to Hua Xia
on 3 September 2013 in consideration of (i) the
allotment and issue of 1 share of US$1 in the share
capital of Timely Hero to Luxuriant Expand, credited
as fully paid up, at the direction of Hua Xia; and
(i) the allotment and issue of a total of 100 shares
of US$1 each in the share capital of Luxuriant
Expand, all credited as fully paid up, to Hua Xia in
consideration of its receipt of 1 share in Timely Hero

at the direction of Hua Xia; and

acquisition of 300 shares in Luxuriant Expand,
representing its entire issued share capital by the
Company from Hua Xia on 3 September 2013
in consideration of (i) the allotment and issue of
648,405,299 shares, all credited as fully paid up, to
Greatly Wealth at the direction of Hua Xia and the
crediting as fully paid at par of the incorporation
share registered in the name of Greatly Wealth;
and (ii) the allotment and issue of 100 shares of
US$1 each in the share capital of Greatly Wealth, all
credited as fully paid up, to Hua Xia in consideration
of its receipt of 648,405,299 shares from the

Company at the direction of Hua Xia.

Upon the completion of the Reorganisation on 3 September

2013, the Company became the holding company of the

companies now comprising the Group.

Particulars of the subsidiaries,

which are all private

companies, of the Group as at 31 March 2014 are set out in
Note 26.

70
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has adopted all of the new
and revised standards, amendments and interpretations
(“new and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA")
that are relevant to its operations and effective for the
Group’s financial year beginning on or after 1 April 2013,
and the amendments to HKAS 36 which are mandatory for
accounting periods on or after 1 January 2014.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 to

2011 Cycle

ERHIREECITIZEEME
BEEN([FRMBEREE

All)

RAFE  AEBCRAMBHEBST
MASEMERNAEER _FT—=F0
B — Bz &A%G 2 BUFEAE N E
HEM AR 2 #7] RAERTER BRI AR
k2B ([HTREEITEBMBREE
AN URR-ZF-NF-A—-—HHZ
BRBR SRR ERZBBES
ZERIFE365% (BFTA) o

HKFRS 1 (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 (Amendments)

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 36 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 20

Government Loans

Disclosure - Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities
Consolidated Financial Statements

Joint Arrangements
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
Fair Value Measurement

Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint
Arrangements and Disclosures of
Interests in Other Entities: Transition
Guidance

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income
Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures

Recoverable Amount and Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of
a Surface Mine
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=HA=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued

The Group has early applied HKAS 36 (Amendments)
Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets,
which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014.

The impact on application of these new and revised HKFRSs
is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRS 7
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities for the first time in the current year. The
amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose

information about:

(@) recognised financial instruments that are set off in
accordance with HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:

Presentation; and

(b) recognised financial instruments that are subject to
an enforceable master netting agreement or similar
agreement, irrespective of whether the financial

instruments are set off in accordance with HKAS 32.

As the Group does not have any offsetting arrangements
or any master netting agreements in place, the application
of the amendments has had no material impact on
the disclosures or on the amounts recognised in these

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BEZ—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) — continued

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the package of five standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures comprising
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, HKFRS 11
Joint Arrangements, HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate
Financial Statements and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, together with
the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12
regarding transitional guidance.

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) is not applicable to the Group
as it deals only with separate financial statements.

The impact of the application of these standards is set out
below.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 10

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK(SIC) Int-12 Consolidation —
Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10 changes the definition
of control such that an investor has control over an investee
when (a) it has power over the investee, (b) it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and (c) has the ability to use its power to
affect its returns. All three of these criteria must be met
for an investor to have control over an investee. Previously,
control was defined as the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. Additional guidance has been included in
HKFRS 10 to explain when an investor has control over an
investee. Some guidance included in HKFRS 10 that deals
with whether or not an investor that owns less than 50% of
the voting rights in an investee has control over the investee
is relevant to the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures

- continued

Impact of the application of HKFRS 11

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures,
and the guidance contained in a related interpretation,
HK(SIC) — Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers, has been incorporated in
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011). HKFRS 11 deals with how
a joint arrangement of which two or more parties have
joint control should be classified and accounted for. Under
HKFRS 11, there are only two types of joint arrangements
— joint operations and joint ventures. The classification
of joint arrangements under HKFRS 11 is determined
based on the rights and obligations of parties to the
joint arrangements by considering the structure, the legal
form of the arrangements, the contractual terms agreed
by the parties to the arrangement, and, when relevant,
other facts and circumstances. A joint operation is a joint
arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control
of the arrangement (i.e. joint operators) have rights to the
assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the
arrangement. A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
(i.e. joint venturers) have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement. Previously, HKAS 31 contemplated three
types of joint arrangements — jointly controlled entities,
jointly controlled operations and jointly controlled assets.
The classification of joint arrangements under HKAS 31
was primarily determined based on the legal form of the
arrangement (e.g. a joint arrangement that was established
through a separate entity was accounted for as a jointly

controlled entity).
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE2—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures

- continued
Impact of the application of HKFRS 11 — continued

The initial and subsequent accounting of joint ventures and
joint operations is different. Investments in joint ventures
are accounted for using the equity method (proportionate
consolidation is no longer allowed). Investments in joint
operations are accounted for such that each joint operator
recognises its assets (including its share of any assets jointly
held), its liabilities (including its share of any liabilities
incurred jointly), its revenue (including its share of revenue
from the sale of the output by the joint operation) and
its expenses (including its share of any expenses incurred
jointly). Each joint operator accounts for the assets and
liabilities, as well as revenues and expenses, relating to
its interest in the joint operation in accordance with the

applicable standards.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 12

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated structured
entities. In general, the application of HKFRS 12 has resulted
in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial

statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in
the current year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of
guidance for fair value measurements and disclosures about
fair value measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad,
the fair value measurement requirements of HKFRS 13
apply to both financial instrument items and non-financial
instrument items for which other HKFRSs require or permit
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17
Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value (e.g. net realisable value for
the purposes of measuring inventories or value in use for
impairment assessment purposes).

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price
that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer
a liability, in the case of determining the fair value of a
liability) in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under
current market conditions. Fair value under HKFRS 13 is
an exit price regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
Also, HKFRS 13 includes extensive disclosure requirements.

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application from 1
January 2013. In addition, specific transitional provisions
were given to entities such that they need not apply
the disclosure requirements set out in the standard in
comparative information provided for periods before the
initial application of the standard. In accordance with these
transitional provisions, the Group has not made any new
disclosures required by HKFRS 13 for the 2013 comparative
period. Other than the additional disclosures, the application
of HKFRS 13 has not had any material impact on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BEZ—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of

Other Comprehensive Income

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1
Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income. The
amendments introduce new terminology for the statement
of comprehensive income and income statement. Under the
amendments to HKAS 1, the “statement of comprehensive
income” is renamed as the “statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income” and the “income statement”
is renamed as the “statement of profit or loss”. The
amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in either a single
statement or in two separate but consecutive statements.
However, the amendments to HKAS 1 require additional
disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive income
section such that items of other comprehensive income
are grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not
be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and (b) items
that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the
same basis — the amendments do not change the option
to present items of other comprehensive income either
before tax or net of tax. The amendments have been applied
retrospectively, and hence the presentation of items of
other comprehensive income has been modified to reflect
the changes. Other than the above mentioned presentation
changes, the application of the amendments to HKAS
1 does not result in any impact on profit or loss, other

comprehensive income and total comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 - 2011
Cycle issued in June 2012

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 — 2011 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on

or after 1 January 2013. Amendments to HKFRSs include:

o amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial

Statements;

o amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment; and

3 amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:

Presentation.

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 1 requires an entity that changes accounting policies
retrospectively, or makes a retrospective restatement or
reclassification to present a statement of financial position as
at the beginning of the preceding period (third statement of
financial position). The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that
an entity is required to present a third statement of financial
position only when the retrospective application, restatement
or reclassification has a material effect on the information
in the third statement of financial position and that related
notes are not required to accompany the third statement of

financial position.

HKAS 16 (Amendments)

The amendments to HKAS 16 clarify that spare parts, stand-
by equipment and servicing equipment should be classified
as property, plant and equipment when they meet the
definition of property, plant and equipment in HKAS 16 and

as inventory otherwise.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE2—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 - 2011

Cycle issued in June 2012 - continued

HKAS 32 (Amendments)

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify that income tax
on distributions to holders of an equity instrument and
transaction costs of an equity transaction should be

accounted for in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes.

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 remove the requirement to
disclose the recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit
("CGU") to which goodwill or other intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives had been allocated when there has
been no impairment or reversal of impairment of the related
CGU. Furthermore, the amendments introduce additional
disclosure requirements regarding the fair value hierarchy,
key assumptions and valuation techniques used when the
recoverable amount of an asset or CGU was determined

based on its fair value less costs of disposal.

Except for the above, the application of these new and
revised HKFRSs had no material impact on the Group's
consolidated financial performance and positions for
the current and prior years. Accordingly, no prior period

adjustments had been required.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) — continued

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these consolidated financial statements.

HKFRSs Amendments Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle®

HKFRSs Amendments Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle?

HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and Hedge Accounting and amendments to
HKAS 39 (Amendments) HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and HKAS 39

HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and
(Amendments) Transition Disclosures*

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and Investment Entities’

HKAS 27 (Amendments)

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts?
HKAS 16 and HKAS 18 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
(Amendments) Depreciation and Amortisation*

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)  Defined Benefits Plans: Employee
Contributions?

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities'

HKAS 39 (Amendments) Novation of Derivatives and Continuation
of Hedge Accounting'

HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014, with earlier application permitted

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014,
with earlier application permitted

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016, with limited exceptions

& No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available
for adoption

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014,
with limited exceptions
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE2—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS
9 was amended in 2010 to include requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for

derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments. Recognition
and Measurement to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent reporting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not
held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised in profit or

loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — continued

3 With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes
in fair value of financial liabilities attributable to
changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS
39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value
of the financial liability designated as fair value through

profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 and HKAS 32 -
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities and the related disclosures

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application
issues relating to the offset of financial assets and financial
liabilities requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify
the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right of

set-off” and “simultaneous realisation and settlement”.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose
information about rights of offset and related arrangements
(such as collateral posting requirements) for financial
instruments under an enforceable master netting agreement

or similar arrangement.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE2—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
Amendments to HKFRS 7 and HKAS 32 -
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities and the related disclosures — continued
The amendments to HKFRS 7 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and interim
periods within those annual periods. The disclosures should
be provided retrospectively for all comparative periods.
However, the amendments to HKAS 32 are not effective until
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014, with

retrospective application required.

The directors anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 32 and HKFRS 7 may result in more
disclosures being made with regard to offsetting financial

assets and financial liabilities in the future.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

(2011) - Investment Entities

The amendments to HKFRS 10 define an investment entity
and require a reporting entity that meets the definition of
an investment entity not to consolidate its subsidiaries but
instead to measure its subsidiaries at fair value through

profit or loss in its financial statements.

To qualify as an investment entity, a reporting entity is

required to:

o obtain funds from one or more investors for the
purpose of providing them with professional

investment management services;
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

(2011) - Investment Entities — continued

. commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose
is to invest funds solely for returns from capital

appreciation, investment income, or both; and

o measure and evaluate performance of substantially all

of its investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments have been made to HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 to introduce new disclosure requirements for

investment entities.

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application
issues relating to the offset of financial assets and financial
liabilities requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify
the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right of

set-off” and “simultaneous realisation and settlement”.

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives
and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

The amendments to HKAS 39 provide relief from the
requirement to discontinue hedge accounting when a
derivative hedging instrument is novated under certain
circumstances. The amendments also clarify that any change
to the fair value of the derivative hedging instrument arising
from the novation should be included in the assessment of

hedge effectiveness.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE2—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
HK (IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies

HK (IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies addresses the issue of when to
recognise a liability to pay a levy. The interpretation defines
a levy, and specifies that the obligating event that gives rise
to the liability is the activity that triggers the payment of the
levy, as identified by legislation. The interpretation provides
guidance on how different levy arrangements should be
accounted for, in particular, it clarifies that neither economic
compulsion nor the going concern basis of financial
statements preparation implies that an entity has a present
obligation to pay a levy that will be triggered by operating in
a future period.

The Group is in the process of assessing the potential impact
of the above new HKFRSs upon initial application but is not
yet in a position to state whether the above new HKFRSs will
have a significant impact on the Group’s and the Company's

results of operations and financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs, which is a collective term
that includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued
by the HKICPA, accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making judgments about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimates is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of
material adjustments in the next year are discussed in Note 5

to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group in the preparation of the consolidated financial

statements is set out below:
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of preparation

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is historical cost except
for certain financial assets (including derivative financial
instruments) and investment properties that are measured at
fair value. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value

of the consideration of given in exchange for assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

4.

EXEMHBRBE-&

Basis of preparation - continued WREE-—&

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or e E=HMAHBEREEIEENT
liability. AEEBENARE-

The principal accounting policies are set out below. FESTTEERRINMT o

Basis of consolidation ReR%

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its

subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

REMBBRESHELAQRARZALD
ARHEMBAREH 2EE (BEE8 %
i) 2MBHRE B EMEL T
i RS EEGE:

o has power over the investee; o AR IR E AT
. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its o ARERBEEELEFRE AT

involvement with the investee; and
o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an

investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote

holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote

holders or other parties;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of consolidation - continued
o rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at

previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the reporting
period are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date of
the Group gains control until the date when the Group

ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributable to owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of

the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses

are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of consolidation - continued

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the
date when control is lost, (ii) derecognises the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including any
components of other comprehensive income attributable to
them), and (iii) recognises the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest, with any resulting difference being recognised as
a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group.
When assets of the subsidiary are carried at revalued
amounts or fair values and the related cumulative gain or
loss has been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity, the amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are
accounted for as if the Company had directly disposed of the
related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
directly to retained earnings as specified by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a

jointly controlled entity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Merger accounting for common control

combination

The financial statement incorporates the financial statement
items of the combining entities or business in which the
common control combination occurs as if they had been
combined from the date when the combining entities or

businesses first came under the control of the controlling

party.

The net assets of the combining entities or business are
combined using the existing book values from the controlling
party’s perspective. No amount is recognised with respect
to goodwill or any excess of acquirer’s interest in the net
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over its cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the contribution of the

controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income include the results of each of
the combining entities or business from the earliest date
presented or since the date when combining entities or
business first came under common control, where this is a
shorter period, regardless of the date of common control

combination.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between the combining entities or business are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are eliminated but considered
as an impairment indicator of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of combining entities or business have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with

the policies adopted by the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Merger accounting for common control
combination - continued

Transaction costs, including professional fees, registration
fees, cost of furnishing information to shareholders, costs
or losses incurred in combining operations of the previously
separate businesses, etc., incurred in relation to the common
control combination that is to be accounted for by using
merger accounting are recognised as an expense in the

period in which they are incurred.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised

in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values at

the acquisition date, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits

respectively;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations - continued

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment transactions of the acquiree or the
replacement of an acquiree’s share-based payment
transactions with share-based payment transactions of
the Group are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2

Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are

measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as

a bargain purchase gain.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations - continued

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair values or, when applicable, on the basis specified
in another HKFRSs.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments being

made against goodwill or gain on bargain purchase.

Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that
arise from additional information obtained during the
measurement period (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed as of the acquisition date. Measurement period does

not exceed one year from the acquisition date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations - continued

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify
as measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss

being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment

would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

Changes in the value of the previously held equity interest
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity before the acquisition date are reclassified to profit
or loss when the Group obtains control over the acquiree.
If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised
as of that date.

4.

EXEMHBRBE &

KRBt &
TEERERFEHERAENIANRE
NFEEHNERSHEERELTATURR
FARAREN I E - 2 BEREENIAKE
TEEHEREAMENTE MARN
BEDREZASIR 2BEREERRE
HNRAREIDRBEFT B ST ERFE395
HEBEHEREITNAEE AAREER
HALE (RMEBER) EHREES A
ENE YHEBETEIEENRER
s

EXBAHIRRER AEEBERKHA
WU EE T IR AR AN WEE B (B
AEENSEFEER) WA FEEHT
E-MELEENBRENER (WB)A
RiE 58 hHERR - RUREE B Him1 B RIE R
BEfEENESHE RNBEEEME2EK
ARER BeRATERRECHEM
RARENEERZSEEN I EEA

¥ ©

EARSEEEG W UIRT Ay SR - R
AR EREMEZEBAFEIR A ER
RANBEARBNRAEZNEEZD
AEHIBRERD MRBEXBSHN
BERRANMAZTRERESHNANLS S
SRR AAKEAZREESHEIMARST
HERENEE ZEEESHE NG
BHBRELAR (R LX) REREN
MEERRE UARBRASEBERKER
HEFENSERBRNFER (HEHN
BIHENCEATHEMTRNTE -

EESERERERLR
2013/2014 3§ 95



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fm © B 15 ¥R R B 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

96

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Goodwiill
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business

less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the

synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a prorate
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent

periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the

determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company in which the Company, directly
or indirectly, controls more than one half of the voting
power; has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies; to appoint or remove the majority of the members
of the board of directors; or to cast majority of votes at the

meetings of the board of directors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Subsidiaries — continued

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company's
statement of financial position at cost less any
impairment loss. The results of subsidiaries are included
in the Company’s statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income to the extent of dividends received

and receivable.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statements of financial position at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an
increase in the future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of the property, plant and equipment,
the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that

asset.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Property, plant and equipment - continued

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, using the straight line
method, over its estimated useful life. The principal annual

rates are as follows:

Over the lease terms
20%
20%

Leasehold improvements
Motor vehicles

Office equipment

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is the difference between the
net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in the consolidated statement of

profit and loss and other comprehensive income.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the consolidated statements of financial position when an
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

98

4.

EXEMHBRBE-&

W R RN —

W% - B IR TE B DL AR LA
TR LM R R A X B
EMT

HEHEE REHR
AE 20%
WAERE 20%

HERRENE BERRBERHKE
HERAEEMSENREEBEEERT
ENER TRGEERAREMEE NG
R

&I A
EERRAIASHGRXN -7 ARG
EMBRRRTIEIAVBEERMEE
E-MBEERMBEBEANDE L FERT
B -WRIABRTUBEERUBRE (&
DFPEZBRBIRNMBEER BB
BERN) BEERENIZRAGRDS
BRBTAMBEEIVBEAE (BAE
EA)AFE PR WBRL
FEHEBRSIRNUBEESAMEE
EEERGNRSRATNEREGESE
R H b 2 S R PR o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fm © B 15 ¥R R B 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BEZ—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into financial assets at fair
value though profit or loss, loans and receivables (including
cash and cash equivalents). All regular ways purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. All regular ways purchases or sales
of financial assets that requires delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. At the end of each reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
including trade and other receivables, amount due from
the immediate holding company, amount due from a fellow
subsidiary, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less any identified impairment losses.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the

recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit
or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash

flows of the investment have been affected.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of

impairment could include:

] significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments; or

J it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are assessed for impairment on a collective
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of
within 90 days, as well as observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original

effective interest rate.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the

allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
each reporting date to identify indications that other assets
may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised

no longer exists or may have decreased.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BEZ—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of other assets — continued

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the

carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

- Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its net selling price and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows

independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its

recoverable amount.

- Reversal of impairment losses
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine

the recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversal of impairment losses are credited
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in the year in which the

reversals are recognised.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities (including interest-bearing
borrowings)

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
amounts due to fellow subsidiaries, amount due to the
ultimate holding company, amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of a subsidiary and bank borrowings are initially
stated at fair value less directly attributable transaction
costs and are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. The related interest expense is recognised
within “finance costs” in the consolidated statements of

profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the

amortisation process.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BEZ—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities (including interest-bearing
borrowings) — continued

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised

borrowing for the proceeds received.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Derecognition — continued

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is

recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in
its entirety (e.g. when the Group retains an option to
repurchase part of a transferred asset or retains a residual
interest that does not result in the retention of substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and the Group
retains control), the Group allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part it continues
to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it
no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values
of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference
between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no
longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received
for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain
or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those

parts.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BEZ—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Derecognition — continued

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in consolidated statement of

profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, other costs that have been incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition, is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less all estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and pledged bank deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an

integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
positions, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, which are not

restricted to use.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4.
POLICIES - continued

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

as follows:

(a) Sales of goods
Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyers, provided that the Group
maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective

control over the goods sold;

(b) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using effective interest method. When a
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flows discounted at original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loans is recognised using the

original effective interest rate.

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave passage
and the cost to the Group of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the period in which the associated services are
rendered by employees of the Group. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material,

these amounts are stated at their present values.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BEZ—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Employee benefits - continued

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance and to the state-managed retirement benefits
schemes for the employees of the Group’s overseas entities
are recognised as an expense in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

incurred.

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when,
the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is

without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years,
and it further excludes consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income items that are never

taxable or deductible.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Income tax — continued

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable
on differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and
is accounted for using the liability method. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary difference can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill (or negative
goodwill) or from the initial recognition (other than a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investment in subsidiaries and
associate, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Income tax — continued

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply to the period when the liability is settled or
the asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, except when it relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the

deferred tax is also dealt within equity.

Provisions

Provision is recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events
and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of
the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted
to reflect the current best estimate. Where the effect of the
time value of money is material, the amount of a provision
is the present value of the expenditures expected to be

required to settle the obligations.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
It can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of

obligation cannot be measured reliably.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

- continued

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When
a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, they will then be recognised as a

provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain

events not wholly within the control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is

virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

Foreign currencies
(a) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the companies now comprising the Group are
measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the company operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which
is the functional and presentation currency of the

Company.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Foreign currencies - continued

(b) Transactions and balances

(c)

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities are reported as part of their fair

value gain or loss.

Group companies

The results and financial positions of all the companies
now comprising the Group (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency

as follows:

(i)  Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing

rate;

(i) Income and expenses are translated at average

exchange rate; and

(iii)  All resulting exchange differences are recognised

as a separate component of equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES - continued

Foreign currencies - continued

(c)

Group companies — continued

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign
operations, and of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such investments,
are taken to owners’ equity. When a foreign operation
is sold, exchange differences that were recorded in
equity are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as part

of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the

closing rate.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interests and other costs incurred in

connection with the borrowing of funds. All borrowing costs

are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income in the period in which they

are incurred.

114
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Related party transactions

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

(b)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of

the Group or of a parent of the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Related party transactions — continued
(b) - continued
(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are

also related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction
when there is a transfer of resources or obligations between

related parties.

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Rentals payable under the operating
leases are charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income on the straight-line

basis over the lease terms.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Leases — continued

Prepaid lease payments for land use rights

Prepaid lease payments for land use rights are stated as
cost less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of interest in
leasehold land are amortised on a straight line basis over the

relevant interest in leasehold land.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation (including property under
construction for such purpose). Investment properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties are

included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the net
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the

property is derecognised.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial information, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group's most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's

various lines of business and geographical locations.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Segment reporting — continued

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 4, management is required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES - continued

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those

involving estimations, that the directors have made in the

process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that

have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised

in the consolidated financial statements.

(a)

(b)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
tax authorities. Significant judgment is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such difference will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such

determination is made.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for an asset at the end of each reporting
period. The asset is tested for impairment when there
are indicators that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the asset is allocated
will be required. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. A change in the
estimated future cash flows and/or the discount rate
applied will result in an adjustment to the estimated

impairment provision previously made.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES - continued

(c)

(d)

120

Useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment

In determining the useful life and residual value of
an item of property, plant and equipment, the Group
has to consider various factors, such as technical or
commercial obsolescence arising from changes or
improvements in production, or from a change in
the market demand for the product or service output
of the asset, expected usage of the asset, expected
physical wear and tear, the care and maintenance
of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use
of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of the
asset is based on the experience of the Group with
similar assets that are used in a similar way. Additional
depreciation is made if the estimated useful lives and/
or the residual values of items of property, plant and
equipment are different from the previous estimation.
Useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the
end of the reporting period based on changes in

circumstances.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group performs annual tests on whether there has
been impairment of goodwill in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 4. The recoverable
amounts of cash-generating units are determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of estimates and assumptions made
by management on the future operation of the
business, pre-tax discount rates, and other assumptions

underlying the value-in-use calculations.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES - continued

(e)

(f)

Impairment of trade receivables

The aged debt profile of trade debtors is reviewed on a
regular basis to ensure that the trade debtor balances
are collectible and follow up actions are promptly
carried out if the agreed credit periods have been
exceeded. However, from time to time, the Group may
experience delays in collection. Where recoverability of
trade debtor balances are called into doubts, specific
provisions for bad and doubtful debts are made
based on credit status of the customers, the aged
analysis of the trade receivable balances and write-off
history. Certain receivables may be initially identified
as collectible, yet subsequently become uncollectible
and result in a subsequent write-off of the related
receivable to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. Changes in the
collectability of trade receivables for which provisions

are not made could affect our results of operations.

Fair value of investment properties

The fair value of each investment property is
individually determined at the end of each reporting
period based on its market value and by adopting
direct comparison method. Direct comparison method
assumes each of these properties is capable of being
sold in its existing state with the benefit of vacant
possession and by making reference to comparable
sales evidence as available in the relevant market
condition, the fair value of the investment properties

will change in future.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. &EMTIAH
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) BENBSHEMTIA
The Group The Company
*5E 3N
2014 2013 2014 2013
—Z-mE “Z-=f% —Zz-mE “Z-=f%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TET THT TEx
Financial assets HERE
Loans and receivables ERRERRE
— trade and other receivables -EREMEKGE 300,680 369,034 - -
— amount due from the immediate —EWEEZER A RHE
holding company 5 5 - -
— amount due from a fellow - —EERAKE
subsidiary DRFE 2,956 448 - =
Financial assets at fair value BRATEERBHIIRZ
through profit or loss HREE 1,259 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBe4EEA 43,638 30,676 102 10
Pledged bank deposits BEARTER 17,431 3,609 - -
365,969 403,772 102 10
Financial liabilities MEAR
At amortised cost REHEAA
~ trade and other payables -ESREMENTE 260,131 303,742 2,577 3
— amount due to the ultimate -BARAEZERDARE
holding company 4,008 889,426 405 1,139
— amounts due to fellow -ERRRKE N RRE
subsidiaries 1,032 1,062 5 15
- amounts due to subsidiaries -EAHEDRRE - - 20,666 8,312
- amounts due to non-controlling  —FE KB A A 2k ER
shareholders of subsidiary RRTE 134 - - -
— bank borrowings —RATER 88,088 50,672 - -
353,393 1,244,902 23,653 9,469

122

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fm © B 15 ¥R R B 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BEZ—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents,
pledged bank deposits, amount due from the
immediate holding company, amount due from a fellow
subsidiary, financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss, trade and other payables, bank borrowings,
amount due to the ultimate holding company, amounts
due to fellow subsidiaries and amounts due to non-
controlling shareholders of a subsidiary. The details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate
risk and currency risk. The directors review and agree
policies for managing each of these risks and they are

summarised below.

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables
included in the consolidated statement of financial
position represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to the Group's financial assets.
No other financial assets carry a significant exposure to

credit risk.

&EMI AR
(b) MERRERHRR YR

FEENFESRTIABREESR
HitBEWRE BERREEEHR
B RITER BREEZRAFRK
B BW-EERRMBRRRIE &
NP EEBERIIKRZTBEE
B5REMEBARKE RITER E
NRAER QB FIE BAEZRH
BRAREREN-—BHNELFZ
FERBRRAE-ZZERIAN
HEEREEMEPRE -RBZ2F
ERTEMEENRRBREEZSZR
BHBEREHEIN DT - EEEEER
ERZ S E R TR R R AN
REVE E # i e

REAEEERIANTIERARS
FERR - RBETER  FXRER
KRE¥EARB ESHMARBEEE
Ei R EERARE BT e

15 & R Bz
SAGEMBRRRANES KA
fEWRERAE HERAEH
RAEEMBEEREAINKRKE
ERkR - HEAMMEEERRE
RIEEERKE -

EESERERERLR
mwnm4§ﬁ 123



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fm © B 15 ¥R R B 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b)

124

Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical location is mainly in the PRC. The Group
also has concentration of credit risk by customers as
approximately 16.4% of total trade receivables were
due from the Group’s five largest customers as at 31
March 2014 (2013: 12.7%).

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
on a timely basis and adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts overdue. In these
regards, the directors of the Company consider that the

Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

Substantially all of the Group's cash and cash
equivalents are mainly deposited in the state controlled
PRC banks which the directors assessed the credit risk

to be insignificant.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that funds will not be available
to meet liabilities as they fall due, and it results
from amount and maturity mismatches of assets and
liabilities. The Group will consistently maintain a
prudent financial policy and ensure that it maintains

sufficient cash to meet its liquidity requirements.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Liquidity risk — continued

The following tables detail Group’s contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest dates on which
Group can be required to pay. The tables include both

interest and principal cash flows.

&EMI AR
(b) MERREEZEARRBR &

B R & W B -
THRAJNAEENBEEEHGS L

FH HRBREAEEZRFEE
AMcUBEERMBERERER
B TREFEFNERETERERE -

The Group X5
Weighted
average  On demand Total
effective or within Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1 year cash flow amount
mEEY BEXE E:30)
ERfE R—%fR BE-% HERESH REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% THET FTET TET TET
As at 31 March 2014 RZS-MWE=RA=+-H
Trade and other payables gaREMEME - 260,131 - 260,131 260,131
Amount due to the ultimate holding B RAERDATE
company - 4,008 - 4,008 4,008
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries LANEEN G - 1,032 - 1,032 1,032
Amounts due to non-controlling BAMEAR2FERRRTE
shareholders of subsidiary - 134 - 134 134
Bank borrowings RITEN 8.1 90,289 - 90,289 88,088
355,594 - 355,594 353,393
As at 31 March 2013 R-E-=F=ZA=t-H
Trade and other payables ESREMEMTE = 303,742 = 303,742 303,742
Amount due to the ultimate holding B RAERDARE
company - 889,426 - 889,426 889,426
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ERRZKBARZE - 1,062 - 1,062 1,062
Bank borrowings RITEN 77 52,104 = 52,104 50,672
1,246,334 - 1,246,334 1,244,902
EERSEERERAR
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. &M IR —iR
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MERKREERHERBEK &
policies — continued
Liquidity risk — continued mEE S E - R
The Company r- /N
Weighted
average  On demand Total
effective or within Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1 year cash flow amount
miEFEy BERY R
ERd® R—%FR BE-F ReREAE RE(E
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TET TET TET TER
As at 31 March 2014 R-E-mE=ZA=+-H
Accruals and other payables Bt REREtENRE - 2,517 - 2,577 2,577
Amount due to the ultimate holding B SAERARDHKE
company - 405 - 405 405
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAT M 2 RIFNIE - 20,666 - 20,666 20,666
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary NIEEA I PNGIE S - 5 - 5 5
23,653 - 23,653 23,653
As at 31 March 2013 R=B-Z5=Zf=1-H
Accruals and other payables B REREEMRE - 3 - 3 3
Amount due to the ultimate holding B SAERARHNE
company - 1,139 - 1,139 1,139
Amount due to a subsidiary EHE A RFE - 8,312 = 8,312 312
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary ISIEEA I PNGIE S - 15 - 15 15
9,469 - 9,469 9,469
WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 B2 —ZE—FE=A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. &EMTITH-I&
(b) HERBREEEAERME &

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity management
rests with the board of directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework
for the management of the Group’s short, medium
and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and
reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the

maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group has available
unutilised short and medium term bank loan
facilities of approximately HK$111,164,000 (2013:
HK$32,381,000).

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate bank balances and bank
borrowings (Note 34). The Group's cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation
of interest rates arising from the Group's RMB

denominated borrowings.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging

significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

RBDRERBEEE
ExsREaEERBESARZ
REE ﬁﬁi%éEL_L—HEA@
ZRBESREBEEER AUE
BEXrEEzEH THRRHES
RENRBESEREZFTR - KAEH
ERRAFAEZ2REE RITEER
BEFERE UARBEHBAAIR
ERRERBETER MWK
EERVBRBZIMER FEU
EERBETAR-

R-ZE-NE=A=+—0 F&&
EBERBAEHRPHBRTERE
#111,164,0008 T (ZE— =%
32,381,000/ 7T) ©

¥ = W B
REBEZFERITEKRRTEER
(MYeE34) A ZREREF REM
AEEZREREMNZABTESR
PRAEBUARBSEZBER
EERNRKE-

7 £ B 3R B 30 R E A R 2R B0 B
KR EEESEENZEAMR
VERERERZRBETERF=R
2 B

EREEEZEERERAR
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b)

128

Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for the
floating rate bank borrowings. The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments outstanding at
the end of the reporting period were outstanding for
the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease
throughout the reporting period is used internally for

assessment of possible change in interest rate.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group's profit for the year would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$131,000 (2013: HK$5,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group's exposure to interest

rates on its variable-rate bank borrowings.

Currency risk

Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial
transactions or recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the entity's

functional currency.

The main operations of the Group were in the PRC
and most of the transactions were denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB"). Foreign exchange risk arises from
the foreign currency denominated of commercial
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group has no
significant direct exposure to foreign currencies as most
of the commercial transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency as the functional currency

of each entity of the Group.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 B2 —ZE—FE=A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. &EMTITH-I&
(b) HERBREEEAERME &

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Currency risk — continued

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure

should the need arise.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, since
the Company risk is minimal, no sensitivity analysis is

presented.

Fair value measurement
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

are determined as follows:

(i) The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded in active markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid and ask prices

respectively.

(i) The fair values of other financial assets
and financial liabilities (excluding derivative
instruments) are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models (e.g.
discounted cash flow analysis using observable

and/or unobservable inputs).

The carrying amount of other financial assets and
liabilities carried at amortised cost, approximate their
respective fair values due to the relatively short-term

nature of these financial statements.

W -
FEERBLETAERMNER
5 REREBEHNEEPRE-
AEEBTOERLNEERR L
AREEERZEEFEAINEA
B o

RARNESRR HRAQXFZA
BMERERE WAL E2 P HRE
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AFEEE
PISEERUERMN AT EEYU
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() PMRZERIR AR A E IR
THEEENVKEERMEER
EWNAFETID RIS EMS
RESEEE -

‘I]]]

(iy HtMBEERMBER (T
BEMEIR) 2DFEZRD
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b)

130

Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The Group’s financial instruments that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value are
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to

which the fair value is observable.

o Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets

for identical assets or liabilities;

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quote prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly

(i.e. derived from prices); and

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (unobservable inputs).

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued
Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

- continued

As at 31 March 2014

6. &M IR iR
(b) MERREEZEARRBR &

RESHBRARABEZ 2 FE
BE -

R-ZE—NE=A=+—8H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
1R 2R 3R #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiET FTHET THET FiERT
Financial assets at fair value RO FEZEBERYIERHE
through profit or loss BEE 1,259 - - 1,259
As at 31 March 2013 R-ZE—=5=ZA=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
14 2 3R ‘st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAER TERT TERT TAR

Financial assets at fair value ~ RAFEZEBERIRNE
through profit or loss BEE

During the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013,

there were no transfers of fair value measurements

between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer into or

out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial

liabilities.

BE-_Z-—NMFR-ZF-=F=A
S+-BLEFER 1R2HBIE
AFEFEER FENVBEE
R EENRIREARESE -

EESERERERLR
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group's capital management
is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital

during the reporting period.

The Group monitors capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group
overall strategy remains unchanged during the reporting

period.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued 7.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt
(bank borrowings), cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued

share capital and reserves.

BERBRETE-®
AEENEREBREES (RTE
R RERASSFEEAUREAAF
HAAEGEES (BECRTRERME
#) o

The Group
x5E

2014 2013

—g-mE | —B2-=%

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHExT

Debt (Note (a)) B (HizE@a)) 88,088 50,672

Cash and cash equivalents BHeRBELEHEER (43,638) (30,676)

Net debt B 44,450 19,996

Equity (Note (b)) xR (MizEb)) 1,045,307 132,762

Gearing ratio EEEGBLE 0.04 0.15
Notes: P&

(a)  Debts represented by bank borrowings as set out in Note 34.

(b)  Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to owners
of the Company.

(a) EHEEME4MERRTER

(b) EEVEAQNAEEAERGHREES
R fst i

EESERERERLR
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OPERATING SEGMENT

Information reported internally to the chief operating

decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation and

assessment of segment performance focuses on types of

goods or services delivered or provided. The Group organised

into two operating divisions: (a) pharmaceutical wholesale

and distribution business and (b) pharmaceutical retail chain

business in the PRC. These divisions are the basis on which

the Group reports its segment information.

Segment revenue and results
For the year ended 31 March 2014

BEERW
BEZLBERREALZR/AEERD
BERFZIERACEN DEERAR
NHEHRz2ERPREEE - A EEAS
RAWELE D | AR E 2 ()% m HE 3
Ro#EEBROERTEEHER -ZF
DMOAKE2HRATEER 2 ER -

SR REA
BE_FT—MNE=A=+—HLFE

Pharmaceutical
wholesale and Pharmaceutical
distribution retail chain
business business Eliminations Consolidated
RHBEER ERZE
DHEE EHEE He e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TET THET
Turnover By
External sales HiNEE 1,858,355 238,100 - 2,096,455
Inter-segment sales PEBHE 56,861 - (56,861) -
Total turnover Pl 1,915,216 238,100 (56,861) 2,096,455
Inter-segment sales are charged SEBEENR
at arm's length AYEERE
Results Ei&
Segment results PEEE 68,198 27,730 - 95,928
Unallocated other revenue RAE 2 iz 1
Unallocated other income RABE 2 EA -
Unallocated corporate expenses AAMZLELH (15,733)
Profit from operations BexBEF 80,196
Finance costs BHEH (6,015)
Profit before taxation RR%% A0 & A 74,181
Taxation BB (25,113)
Profit for the year REERR 49,068
WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Segment revenue and results - continued

For the year ended 31 March 2013
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EENWM-—&
DEBMBREE &
BE-ZT—=F=-A=+t—HLFE

Pharmaceutical
wholesale and Pharmaceutical
distribution retail chain
business business Eliminations Consolidated
ERBBER BEREE
DEHER BHEER e &e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TAET TET TER
Turnover BXE
External sales HINEE 1,672,848 212,521 - 1,885,369
Inter-segment sales SEBHEE 52,597 - (52,597) =
Total turnover BEXE 1,725,445 212,521 (52,597) 1,885,369
Inter-segment sales are charged PEBRHENR
at arm’s length ATEEKRE
Results #
Segment results SEER 55,902 26,502 - 82,404
Unallocated other revenue Aoz Hflk R -
Unallocated other income ROz HMKA 19
Unallocated corporate expenses RABzEEZE (17,656)
Profit from operations R EK R 64,767
Finance costs B &R (4,090)
Profit before taxation Rt B0 & A 60,677
Taxation BB (18,772)
Profit for the year REEEAN 41,905
EESEREEBRAR
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8. OPERATING SEGMENT - continued

Segment assets and liabilities
At 31 March 2014

8. EESW-&
SHRERAR

R-E—ME=A=+—H

Pharmaceutical
wholesale and

Pharmaceutical

distribution retail chain
business business Consolidated
ELHER ERTE
SHEE EHEE o3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TET
Consolidated statement of financial position & MBEKAE
Assets BE
Segment assets NEEE 522,781 115,488 638,269
Goodwill BE 785,521
Unallocated corporate assets RO LEEE 8,929
Consolidated total assets RREEHRE 1,432,719
Liabilities AR
Segment liabilities PEEE 341,356 39,030 380,386
Unallocated corporate liabilities APBZL¥8E 6,610
Consolidated total liabilities neEBfERE 386,996
WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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8. OPERATING SEGMENT - continued

Segment assets and liabilities - continued

At 31 March 2013

8. EESNW-&
SHRERAR-&

R-ZF-=%=R=+—H

Pharmaceutical
wholesale and Pharmaceutical
distribution retail chain
business business Consolidated
BRRER BnTE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER TER FTER
Consolidated statement of financial position $&MBEKAE
Assets BE
Segment assets DTEEE 508,405 94,729 603,134
Goodwill 5k 785,521
Unallocated corporate assets APEB2bEERE 2,268
Consolidated total assets RREEME 1,390,923
Liabilities =R
Segment liabilities PEEE 333,518 34,704 368,222
Unallocated corporate liabilities RoBEebEER 889,500
Consolidated total liabilities REEEHE 1,257,722
AREEERAELE
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8. OPERATING SEGMENT - continued

Other segment information
For the year ended 31 March 2014

8. BENN-&
Htt 5 A& #
BE-F-NE=A=+—ALEE

Pharmaceutical
wholesale and Pharmaceutical
distribution retail chain
business business Unallocated Consolidated
EahRR EnZE
PHEE EHEE *AE &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTET TET TET
Other information Hitt & #
Capital expenditure EREX 1,854 3,402 7 5,263
Depreciation e 1,570 2,070 13 3,653
Amortisation of prepaid lease BABERERS
payments - 188 - 188
Reversal of impairment loss of BEESRHEMERREZ
trade and other receivables REEE 645 101 - 746
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEN% BERREZ
equipment BE 26 - - 26
Impairment loss recognised in respect & 5 & At EKFEHRE
of trade and other receivables REEE 499 19 - 518
Note: P&

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

equipment.

For the year ended 31 March 2013

EARXBRENE BERKRBIRE-

BE-ZT—=F=-A=+t—HLFE

Pharmaceutical
wholesale Pharmaceutical
and distribution retail chain
business business Unallocated Consolidated
EmBER EnTE
DEHER B AR &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TET TET Ti#Ex
Other information Hth & #
Capital expenditure EREX 1,141 1,073 62 2,276
Depreciation e 1,908 2,015 9 3,932
Amortisation of prepaid BAAENERH
lease payments - 182 - 182
Reversal of impairment loss of BEESKREMEYFEZ
trade and other receivables HEER 476 = = 476
Change in fair value of RENEZATEEZD
investment properties - 492 - 492
Loss on disposal of property, HENE BEREEZ
plant and equipment BB 60 216 - 276
Impairment loss recognised in respect  FE % R E K BRER
of trade and other receivables HEER 859 = 130 989
Note: B &

138

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

BEXMXBREHNE BERRBZAERA

THEERIEA-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fm © B 15 ¥R R B 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BEZ—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENT - continued

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note
4. Segment results represent the profit generated by each
segment without allocation of other revenue, other income,
corporate expenses, finance costs and taxation. Unallocated
corporate expenses mainly include directors’ remuneration
and other central administration costs. This is the measure
reported to the chief operating decision maker for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment

performance.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and

allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than goodwill and unallocated corporate assets.
Unallocated corporate assets mainly include cash
and cash equivalents of the central administration

companies.

o all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than unallocated corporate liabilities. Unallocated
corporate liabilities mainly include the amount due
to the ultimate holding company, accruals and other

payables of the central administration companies.

Geographical information

The Group operates in two principal areas — pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution business and pharmaceutical
retail chain business operates in the PRC and administrative

activity operates in Hong Kong.

EESB-®

AR E D BB R EM AR 2 A
SEEFERE - D EXEREIEE
£2mA AETREME  HaWl A
TEXH MEERARBEZDE KD
EtXRXTEBREEMERAMP
REBEM - LDIHRERIERDERR
FEAETREEBRRERE 25TE-

RERSBRARSRHEHERME -

e KRHEEBERRIBEXEEIN A
EENITRETREST R -RDE
TEEEFTEBEPREEQFAZ
REkBAEEEER -

s BRARIBREEXKEIN AAEREY
TEEAREIE - KIBELXE
BEERERENRKER2AR
HPAREEQNFZEFERARA
il FE A 5038 o

HERH

AEERMEETEZEEREE -HEPEHE
CHGHBRIBEEBURERTEE
HEBREEBREEEER -

EREEZEERERAT
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENT - continued 8.

Geographical information - continued
The Group’s revenue is solely generated from external

customers in the PRC.

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non-
current assets analysed by the geographical area in which

the assets are located:

BEESE-®&
WERH @
REE 2 WHE S BRERFENBES o

UTAREEFMBELEIMZERDE
EZIREE D7 :

Carrying amount of

non-current assets

FRDHEEZIREE

2014 2013
—ZE—QmFE =EE==
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Hong Kong i 47 52
PRC HE 810,858 809,164
810,905 809,216
Information about major customers FREEERZCEH

For the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013, no single

customers contributed 10% or more to the Group’s revenue.

Revenue from major products
The Group's revenue from its major products were stated in

Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE2—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

TURNOVER 9. EXH®
The Group's turnover represents the net invoiced value of AEBHNEEBALCNBREERRZIT
goods sold, after allowances for returns and trade discounts. NEERANCEEmBEFE EEHBN
The turnover is as follows: T
2014 2013
—Z—mE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET THExT
Retail of pharmaceutical and EQREEEREE
related products 238,100 212,521
Wholesale and distribution of ZERkHBEERIERDH
pharmaceutical and related products 1,858,355 1,672,848
2,096,455 1,885,369
EESEREEBRAR
2013/2014 F 45 141
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

10. OTHER REVENUE 10. Rt =2
2014 2013
—Z—mE —2—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHET
Interest income on bank deposits RITERZFE WA 695 632
Realised gain on financial assets EBRERUATEFEZ
at fair value through profit or loss B ERE 2SR INE 44 -
Rental income HeWA 2,373 1,410
Exhibition income BEUWA 2,816 4,505
Sundry income HETE UT A 1,615 1,182
7,543 7,729
11. OTHER INCOME 1. Rt A
2014 2013
—2—mEF —E-—=F
HK$000 HK$’000
THET FET
Reversal of impairment loss of B 5 Rk H i ERIE ZRE
trade and other receivables EE R E 746 476
Change in fair value of REVMEZAFEEZH
investment properties - 492
Exchange gain A - 110
746 1,078

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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12. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

The Group's profit from operations is arrived at after

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BEZ—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

12. EERBRER

REBELEER 2 ERNTDEHBRT 51|

charging: BREN:
2014 2013
—E—-QmE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Staff costs: BEITER:
Employee benefits expense (including EE W=k X
directors’ emoluments (Note 14)): (BEESME (KMFE14)) :
Salaries and allowance e RERM 54,542 47,583
Pension scheme contributions RIKEETEIMER 6,128 5,750
60,670 53,333
Other items: HMtIEH:
Depreciation of owned property, FEEY* BERRZERTE
plant and equipment (Note 20) (KfzE20) 3,653 3,932
Amortisation of prepaid lease FEAEERE#ESE (MEE21)
payments (Note 21) 188 182
Auditors’ remuneration ZE A &
— audit services —EZR 850 -
- non-audit services —EBEZR 2,169 =
Cost of inventories sold EEFERAE 1,906,991 1,721,210
Loss on disposal of property, HEVXE BERSEZER
plant and equipment 26 276
Impairment loss recognised in respect of RESZRHEMEWRKIERRZ
trade and other receivables WEEE 518 989
Operating lease rentals in respect of RITWREFILKEHERS
land and building 18,380 15,661

For the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013, the cost of =
inventories recognised as cost of sales were approximately =
HK$1,906,991,000 and HK$1,721,210,000 respectively. =i

=

1,721,210,0007 T °

BRREZEARAF

2013/2014 3§

E-_E-—NER-_F-—=%=A4
S+ HLEEE BRABERAZE
B A2 Bl 4 #£1,906,991,00058 T K&
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

13. FINANCE COSTS 13. BMBEH
2014 2013
—ZE—MmE —E2—=
HK$000 HK$'000
THExT THET
Interest on: DTERZHE
— Bank borrowings wholly - EREFAZHEEZ
repayable within five years RITIEE 6,015 4,090
14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 14. EFHM

Pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance, the aggregate amounts of

emoluments paid by the companies now comprising the

Group to the directors of the Company during the reporting

period are as follows:

RELETRAUKREBQFRIIE 1618
BABAEEZZERARARBEHREX
RFARARAES 2 HFMABRMT :

2014 2013
—ZE—Mmf —_EF—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T TET
Fees ok 535 251
Other emoluments: HibEN < :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMREYRE 105 141
Provident fund contributions NIESHER 23 11
Total F 663 403
WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE=—Z—NFE=A=1+—HIFE

14. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS - continued

Details for the emoluments of each director of the Company

during the reporting period are as follows:

14. EEFHM — 18

ARABRBEERBENB zHMFB W

T

Salaries,
allowances and

Provident fund

Total

Fees benefits in kind contributions remuneration
e 2MR
e EmAg LERER A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET TET TET TET
For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HEZZE—MF
ZA=t+—-HLEEE
Executive directors: HITEE:
Mr. Weng Jiaxing (Note (a)) SMELEE (HFQ) 264 - 15 279
Mr. Chen Yong (Note (b)) BB % E (MED) - 105 8 13
Independent non-executive directors: ﬁi FHITEE .
Mr. Liang Yichi (Note (c)) =t (M) 75 - - 75
Mr. Zhu Donghai (Note (d)) %%E%E(Fﬁ?&( )) 68 - - 68
Dr. Liu Yongping (Note (e)) YAEFEL (KiEe) " - - 1
Mr. Wong Hon Kit (Note (f)) EEGEE () 17 - - 17
535 105 23 663
Salaries,
allowances and Provident fund Total
Fees benefits in kind contributions remuneration
H& 2ER
ne ENFE= AREHR BHM
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEr TER TEx
For the year ended 31 March 2013 BEZZE-—=%
ZA=t-HLEFE
Executive directors: HiTEE:
Mr. Weng Jiaxing (Note (a)) HMELE (K@) 162 - - 162
Mr. Chen Yong (Note (b)) BB xE (HED) - 141 11 152
Independent non-executive BUHHTEE.
directors:
Mr. Liang Yichi (Note (c)) R—EE (HEE() 42 - - 42
Mr. Zhu Donghai (Note (d)) REBEE (M) 47 - - 47
Mr. Wong Hon Kit (Note (f)) HEGLE () - - - -
251 141 11 403
EERSEERERAR
2013/2014 3§ 145
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS - continued
During the year ended 31 March 2014 and 2013, no

emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors or chief

executive officer as an inducement to join or upon joining

the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

None of the directors or chief executive officer agreed to

waive or waived any emoluments during year end 31 March
2014 and 2013.

Notes:

(a)

146

Mr. Weng lJiaxing is the chief executive officer and was

appointed as executive director from 9 July 2012.

Mr. Chen Yong was appointed as executive director on 4
September 2012.

Mr. Liang Yichi was appointed as independent non-executive
directors on 4 September 2012.

Mr. Zhu Donghai was appointed as independent non-
executive directors on 4 September 2012 and resigned on 27
February 2014.

Dr. Liu Yongping was appointed as independent non-executive

directors on 27 February 2014.

Mr. Wong Hon Kit was appointed as independent non-
executive directors on 11 April 2013.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

14.

ERHM -

RBE-Z-NER=-F-=4=A4
St-BLFE AEERERESRT
BRSXAEAHE  FHEMARES
SR7E B0 A7 S B 0 5 R O

REBEZE-Z-—NEFRER-_ZF—=F=A4
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE2—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

15. EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS
Senior management emoluments and five highest
paid employees
The five highest paid individuals during the year included 1
director (2013: 1).

Details of whose remuneration are set out in Note 14. The
detail of the emoluments of the remaining 4 (2013: 4)

highest paid employees are as follows:

15.

& 5B &
EREEARHSRIBESHES

FREEBRSHEERE B (Z2—=
F:-R)E=S-

R F RN T4 BT A
(=%—=F :N%) 2BEHEEZHS
HEMT

2014 2013

—E—MmE —E-—=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET T T

Salaries and other emoluments FehHEMME 1,433 892
Retirement scheme contributions BRREAGTEH X 49 33
1,482 925

The number of these non-director, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following band is as

follows:

ZEHES REFEENFHFMNFUT

EER

2014 2013
—E—MEF —E2—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET FETT
Nil to HK$1,000,000 0% 1,000,000/ JT 4 4
EERERRERAT
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

15. EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS - continued 15. BRBM& -8
Senior management emoluments and five highest EREEARHMERIEERHFER
paid employees - continued — &
The emoluments of the senior management (excluding MREZ AQAESREERE (TEEE
directors) of the Company are within the following band. B)WEMN FUATEE -
2014 2013
—E—QmEF =EE==
HK$000 HK$’000
THET FET
Nil to HK$1,000,000 0% 1,000,000 Jt 6 6
During the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013, no BE_Z-—NFR-Z—=F=ZF=+—
emoluments were paid by the Group to five highest paid BEFE AEEYENTERSHES
employees or the senior management as an inducement to HEREEAESXNEH UERKSI M
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss BAEBRAMBRIEE  RIEABER
of office. None of the five highest paid employees or senior HE-ABREHRN BIRTERSEHES
management waived or agreed to waive any emoluments NS AR EIE A B R EE Sk E = EE 1 B
during the reporting period (2013: Nil). S (ZE—Z=5:8\)-
16. TAXATION 16. IR
2014 2013
—ZE—MmEF =2—-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Current tax for the year FRENEFE
— PRC enterprise income tax —HhE R ERER 22,389 19,384
- PRC withholding tax paid/(refund) Bt CGRE)FEFENS 2,383 (612)
24,772 18,772
Under provision in prior year BEFEBREBETRE
— PRC enterprise income tax —FHEEEREBH 341 =
341 -
25,113 18,772

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE2—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

16. TAXATION - continued

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising or derived from the jurisdictions in which

members of the Group are domiciled and operate.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
during the year as the Group has no assessable profits

arising in Hong Kong (2013: Nil).

The National People’s Congress which was concluded on
16 March 2007, the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law was
approved and became effective from 1 January 2008. The
PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law introduces a wide range of
changes which include, but are not limited to, the unification
of the income tax rates for domestic-invested and foreign-

invested enterprises at 25%.

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, starting
from 1 January 2008, 10% withholding income tax will
be imposed on dividend relating to profits earned by the
companies established in the PRC in the calendar year
2008 onwards to their foreign shareholders. For investors
incorporated in Hong Kong which hold at least 25% of
equity interest of those PRC companies, a preferential rate of
5% will be applied. The Group has applied the preferential
rate of 5% as the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are directly
held by an investment holding company incorporated in
Hong Kong. No deferred tax has been provided for in respect
of the temporary differences attributable to such profits as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable
to profit before taxation using the statutory rate for the
location in which the Company and its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate are as

follows:

16. I — &

AEEARAKEERELAAMEREE
FRERERBEERRE 2GR RE
BEEHMER -

HAREERFRALEEEBEEEM
ERBRER > S BEH B BRERBE
(ZB—=F:8)-

R-ZZLF=A+ABERNZEA
RREASEZEL TECEMESBIEE
A YH-_ZENF—A—HEBEN-
RECEMEREASIA—RIIEEH BIF
BRRABREARERMECENFAE
WMEH—725% °

RETFEEEFERE B2 N\F—
A—HE #BBEEFEXIHNATE=-F
ENEFEFERBANEN ZAFHBEIMR
RO EBE10%NRIDFAER - HRE
BEREMALEFEZSEPEQAED
25%RENREE  BEESHHEIR
R ARAEEETE KM EARITH—
BEEEBEMRINREERDAEE
A HAEEZRS%NEEB M MK
HeHRAEBARIZEF RO TR
HYBSFE - B AR KT BER 7] R % 258 [ B B
R MABERZE RN EG 2R EH
TR IE R TR o

EAARDE R HME A B PTE 32k
EBRTEEARBRBAER ZREHR
AxXERERRERTE2RBERA Y
BRWOT
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BiZ—Z—NF=A=1+—HIFE

16. TAXATION - continued 16. IR — &
For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE_Z—NUFE=A=+—HLEE
The PRC Hong Kong Total
TE Ei# it
HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
TET % TET % Tigx %
Profit/(loss) before taxation BEAER/ (BR) 89,914 (15,733) 74,181
Tax at the statutory tax rate REERETERE 2,479 25.0 (2,596) (16.5) 19,883 26.8
Tax effect of income not taxable and BARHMARFTNHERZH
expenses not deductible for tax purpose B EE (90) 0.1 830 5.3 740 1.0
Under provision in prior year BEFEREIR 341 0.4 - - 341 05
PRC withholding tax refund BREPERNE - - 2,383 15.1 2,383 32
Tax loss not recognised REANHBEE - - 1,766 11.2 1,766 24
Tax charge and effective tax rate ERREIHRERRE
for the year 22,730 25.5 2,383 15.1 25,113 33.9
For the year ended 31 March 2013 BE-_Z—=F=ZA=+—HLEFE
The PRC Hong Kong Total
H BB h
HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
TR % TER % ThAn %
Profit/(loss) before taxation BEAER/ (BR) 78,315 (17,638) 60,677
Tax at the statutory tax rate REERETEHE 19,579 25.0 (2,910) (16.5) 16,669 215
Tax effect of income not taxable and BAFHBARFANHFAZH
expenses not deductible for tax purpose BB HE (195) (0.2) 1,055 6.0 860 14
PRC withholding tax refund REVEFENH = = (612) (3.5) (612) (1.0)
Tax loss not recognised REANHBEHE - - 1,855 105 1,855 3.0
Tax chargef(credit) and effective tax rate ERHELL/ (BE)R
for the year BRE® 19,384 2438 (612) (35) 18,772 309

17. LOSS OF THE COMPANY

The loss for the year dealt with in the financial statements
of the Company amounted to HK$8,355,000 (2013:

HK$7,423,000).

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE2—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

DIVIDENDS 18. l& 2
The directors of the Company do not recommend the AAREETERERBE-_Z—NE=
payment of any dividend for the year ended 31 March 2014 B=t—HLIEFENEARE (ZZE—=
(2013: Nil). FiE) o
EARNINGS PER SHARE 19. BlREF
2014 2013
—2—mEF —ZE—=
HK$000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Earnings a7
Profit attributable to owners of RATEE ABMLEF
the Company for the purpose of (AUGTESRERER)
basic earnings per share calculation 48,920 41,763
Number of shares 4V R flc|
Weighted average number of shares INHE 39 IR B
for the purpose of basic earnings (AUGESRELRRF)
per share 648,405,300 648,405,300

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to owners of the Company for the
reporting period and on the assumptions that the proposed
648,405,300 ordinary shares in issue as at the date of listing
of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange as described
in the sub-section headed “Written resolutions of the sole
shareholder dated 24 September 2013" under the section
headed “Statutory and General Information” in Appendix
VI to the prospectus of the Company dated 30 September
2013, as if the shares were outstanding throughout the
years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013.

Diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic earnings
per share as there were no potential diluted ordinary share in
existence for the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013.

SEESREABMDRENRBEHE 2
KATREBEABEEFNRBEAATH
HE-_T-—=FAA=TBHZHBRENW
BARIEER—REM]—EGHRIBHA
TE-ZFAAZTHAZEERRE
ERBR | — BRIl 2 A1 5] IR 47 7 B
P BHIE 47 2 £ 7%648,405,300
BRAAREBRABE-_ZE—TNEFR=
E-=ZH5=ZA=+-BLEFE-—EHE#1T
T

HREBEE-ZT-—NFEK_ZT-=F=A
ST-HLEFEYEABEHEIEN
EER BEREFRANESREREF
1 e
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20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 200 ME - BERRE

152

Leasehold Office Motor
improvement equipment vehicle Total
HEDRKE WOEM MR RE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TER TET
Cost 583
As at 1 April 2012 R=Z--fMA—-A 3,704 14,283 2,390 20,377
Additions B 324 1,467 425 2,216
Disposal HE (231) (556) (110) (897)
Exchange realignment EHRE 31 117 19 167
As at 31 March 2013 and R-E-=%=A=+-H
1 April 2013 kZE-=F0F—H 3,828 15,311 2,724 21,863
Additions B 2,177 2,616 470 5,263
Disposal HE& (384) (551) (286) (1,221)
Exchange realignment RS 86 332 58 476
As at 31 March 2014 R-Z2-ME=A=+—-H 5,707 17,708 2,966 26,381
Accumulated depreciation RitHE
As at 1 April 2012 RZBE-—FNA—H 1,309 5,561 653 7,523
Charge for the year FREMEK 892 2,650 390 3,932
Disposal HE (231) (336) (54) (621)
Exchange realignment EX A 20 73 10 103
As at 31 March 2013 and “E-Z5=ZAt-BR
1 April 2013 :2—:35@)5] H 1,990 7,948 999 10,937
Charge for the year FREMBR 1,022 2,178 453 3,653
Disposal HE (384) (475) (192) (1,051)
Exchange realignment EHRE 51 195 27 273
As at 31 March 2014 R-Z-WE=A=+—-H 2,679 9,846 1,287 13,812
Net book value MRERE
As at 31 March 2014 R-Z—-HWE=A=+—-H 3,028 7,862 1,679 12,569
As at 31 March 2013 “E-Z§=ZA=+-H 1,838 7,363 1,725 10,926

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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21. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 21. EAHEERR
2014 2013
—ZE—MmF =T — =
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT THBT
Leasehold land in the PRC: FREFE & 1 i
— Medium-term lease —FHEIEE 4,697 4,796
Analysed for reporting purpose as: DPMIEZRFHAE:
— Current assets (included in trade and -RBEE (BEEER
other receivables and deposits) (Note 25) Hh U FRIE) (FizE25) 188 184
— Non-current assets —ERBEE 4,509 4,612
4,697 4,796

As at 31 March 2014, the amount of approximately
HK$1,979,000 (2013: Nil) are pledged as collaterals for

Group’s bank borrowings, details please refer Note 42.

The Group's prepaid lease payments amounts represent
the payments for land use rights situated in the PRC. The
leasehold lands have lease term of 35 years and the Group
has processed the land use rights of the leasehold land

during the lease term.

Amortisation on prepaid lease payments of approximately
HK$188,000 (2013: HK$182,000) have been charged to the
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the years
ended 31 March 2014 and 2013 respectively.

RZZE-—-MNME=A=+—H8"#&
1,979,0008 T (ZZ—=F |\|) 2% &
WERAEQRARTEEZEAR #15
ESBKIEE42 o

AEBRNHAENRERURFEZ L
MEREZNR -HEL B ZHAERR3S5
FoMASREREAEHANERHEHE L2
T EARE

#188,0005& 7T (ZF— =4 : 182,000/
TIZEANEEREEIIREBE=Z
—MER=—B-=ZF=ZA=+—ALE
EzGeBRBsRRABZERERP
o

EESERRERLR
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

22. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 22. BBME
2014 2013
—Z—mE ===
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Completed investment properties ERTREYE 8,306 8,157
At fair value BRAOFE

At beginning of the year RED 8,157 7,611
Exchange realignment R 149 54
Fair value change NEEE2Y - 492
At end of the year RER 8,306 8,157

Note: B &E
The investment property with net book approximately REZ2-MOF=ZA=+—H REVHEEREF

HK$8,306,000 as at 31 March 2014 (2013: Nil) was pledged as
collaterals for the Group’s bank borrowings, please refer to Note 42.

(a)

154

Valuation of investment properties

The investment properties amounted of approximately
HK$8,306,000 of the Group were stated at fair value
as at 31 March 2014. The fair value were arrived at
based on the valuations carried out by an independent
firm of qualified professional valuers, Asset Appraisals
Limited, (“AAL"), who have among their staff members
of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent
experience in the location and category of the
properties being values. The valuations conform to
the Valuation Standards 2012 Edition published by
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The completed
investment property has been valued using the direct

comparison approach.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

{E#48,306,0008 T (ZFE—=F &) B EH
EAREERITEEZER R FHEFESHMEE

42

(a)

REMRZMGE
R-ZB-NF=ZA=+—H &K
E498,306,000/8 T 2 REWFEE LD
FEIIKR A FELBRERABELS
EREXMGEMTAEEETER
BARAR ([AALL) FrEGEME
E-ETAABAENAALBERE
BREMEESEE WHETHE
MEZMERERNERTHMEERL
BR-AHAMENEEBNEMES
HIRZEEER (ZF—-ZFMK) -
EENBREMEEAEELELE
Tih{E-
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

22. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued 22. MEYE
(a) Valuation of investment properties — continued (a) BEYWEZHE—E
The direct comparison approach is adopted where ERBRE TR ENERER
comparison based on prices information of comparable ETHR 2BHELE L

properties is made.

There had been no change from the valuation B E F AT ER Y (B A 3 A 3
technique used in the prior year. In estimating the fair EEABEE  RNEFYENAFEE
value of the properties, the highest and best use of the B YENERSRRELARAHEE
properties is their current use. AIFAR
(b) The analysis of the carrying amount of (b) BEMEZIEEESHMT:
investment properties is as follows:
2014 2013
—Z—mE =E—-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FEx
Land in the PRC: AR L ih
Medium-term lease FREFFE A 8,306 8,157
EESEERERARLR
2013/2014 155
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

22. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued

(c) Details of the Group’s investment properties

156

and information about the fair value

22.

REMR-#E
() R-B—MER-B—=FZA
=+—-B FEERABERL

hierarchy as at 31 March 2014 and 2013 are FEHEBEHERNT:
as follows:
Fair value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 as at 2014
RIE-MELZ
1R 2R 3k NFEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTHET FTHET FiET
Investment property unit NRFE 2 RENEE N
located in PRC - 8,306 - 8,306
Fair value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 as at 2013
R-B-=Fy
18R 28R 3 AEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TEr TET TiEx
Investment property unit URAREZREMEEN
located in PRC - 8,157 - 8,157

There were no transfers into or out of level 3 during

the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BEZ—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

22. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued

(d)

Investment properties leased out under

operating leases

All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating lease to earn rentals are measured using
the fair value model and classified accounted for

investment properties.

The Group leases out its investment properties which is
a shop unit of a 9-storey composite building to various
tenants. The leases typically run for an initial period
of 1 year to 5 years, at the end of which all terms are
renegotiable. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals. The rental income for investment properties
is approximately HK$450,000 (2013: HK$436,000).
There were no direct operating expenses arising from
investment properties for the years ended 31 March
2014 and 2013.

The properties held had committed tenants for the 1.5
years (2013: 2.5 years). At the end of the reporting
period, the Group contracted with tenants for the

following future minimum lease receivables:

22. BEYME-—&E
(d) BEEEHEHEAZREIDE

AEEMAERBELHESBUR
WEESRANYERRZITRALQF
ERAFE UDEERENEA
iR

AEEOZEHEHFPFHEEREY
¥ ABREAEz —ERHE
TN -—RAOSHRB—FERF
HmkERER A RR BB
FHESRBLS -RERENHEZ
e WA H450,0008 T (=F
— =% :436,0008 )  BE_-Z
—NEKR=-ZZFE-—Z=F=A=+—H
LFEE REVESBELHEER
EHXeo

FEREZURERRISFE(ZF
—=ZF25F)CAEEAEZE
FeRABEHR  AEECLEES
AIA ARRWE ZHEEEOT

2014 2013
—Z—M@mEF —E2—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FHE T
Within one year —FR 300 457
In the second to the F_ZRF (BREEEWE)
fifth years inclusive 54 300
354 757
BEESEERARLR
2013/2014 3§ 157
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

23. GOODWILL 23. &
HK$'000
FET
Cost BF
As at 1 April 2012 R=Z——FMB—H 785,519
Exchange realignment & A 2
As at 31 March 2013 and R-BE-—=F=A=+—-HER=Z—=
1 April 2013 and 31 March 2014 MAE—BAR-—ZF—MNE=A=+—H 785,521
Impairment w8
As at 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013, R-E——-—FWMA—H —ZT—=F
1 April 2013 and 31 March 2014 ZA=+—-B RA=ZE-—=
MA—HR-—Z—NE=A=+—H -
Carrying value REE
As at 31 March 2014 R-Z—HWMFE=A=+—H 785,521
As at 31 March 2013 NZE—=F=A=

As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, the Group assessed the
recoverable amount of the cash generating units in which
goodwill is allocated, and determined that no impairment
loss on goodwill is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income during the
years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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+—H 785,521

R-ZB-—NER-_ZF—=F=ZA=1+—
B AEEHIREHECReEEEN
ZAWESBEETHE UEERBE=
Z-NER_F-—=F=A=+—HI
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

23. GOODWILL - continued
Impairment Tests for Cash-generating Units
Containing Goodwiill
Goodwill acquired has been allocated for impairment testing

purposes to the following cash generating unit (“CGU"):

= Nurture Fit Limited (“Nurture Fit"”) and its subsidiaries

- Huihao Medicine (Quanzhou) Co. Ltd (“Quanzhou
Huihao")

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more

frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be

impaired.

Before recognition of impairment losses, the carrying

amount of goodwill was allocated to CGU as follows:

23. e &
AHGEBZHSELHAREAR

FrigiEmE e BB ER = B B2 BT 2
TREELEN (REELEEM])

- BREBRAR(REJREKBEA
2

- ZBHFBE(RMARIA(TRM
Bl

AEESFETABEBRENR R
BPSBERHE R ERERERE
3 4T RN (BRI A o

REDBEBERN 7ETREELEN
ZEEREENT :

2014 2013
—2—mE | —F—=
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET FET
Nurture Fit and its subsidiaries RERHENE LA
— retail, wholesales and distribution - ZE - WMBEIHEHERR
of pharmaceutical and related HEE m
products 785,169 785,169
Quanzhou Huihao RME L
— retail of pharmaceutical and -~ ZEEQREBEER
related products 352 352
785,521 785,521
ERSEERERAR
2013/2014 & 4§ 159
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

23.

GOODWILL - continued
Impairment Tests for Cash-generating Units

Containing Goodwill - continued
Note:

Nurture Fit and its subsidiaries

The recoverable amount of this cash generating unit (“CGU") is
determined based on a value in use calculation which uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period and with discount rates of 10.33%
(2013: 9.01%) per annum. Cash flow projections during the
budgeted period are based on the same expected gross margins
throughout the budget period. The management considers that it is
prudent and appropriate to adopt a steady 1% (2013: 1%) annual
growth rate of cash flows projections for each flows beyond the
budgeted period. This growth rate does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the market. Management believes that
any reasonably possible change in the other key assumptions on
which recoverable amount is based would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of this
CGU. Management determined the budgeted gross margin based on
past performance and its expectations for the market development.

The discount rate used reflects specific risks relating to the relevant
business and consistent with external sources of information.
Assuming the growth rate decreases by 150 basis points or discount
rate increase by 150 basis points there is still sufficient headroom
and no impairment charge is required for goodwill as at 31 March
2014 (2013: Nil).

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
160

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

23. e 1A

ERHEBZREES B AR ER
— i
By &E -

BEREMREBAT

hBREEESEM ([BEELEN]) 2TWE
SENREFEREEFTHEEE  MEABEER
BEEEMECRER EPRMIEEEMS
HeBEEeREFER URMERSF10.33%
(ZE—Z=F:901%)sTE -BEHAZES
mEFER DEREZEREHRERZEEE
FEFHE-BEERA EABEHEEASR
BrEBEERRRI(ZE—=H:1%)#
ENEEEREE HERERITBBHEZ
REBTPHERE-EEEMERGE SFETKE S
BB HEMEABRIELEBE 2 ES
B FASEHUHBESEESEN 2 REMAERE
HoEBEEAE - EEEREBERERE
SRR BAEEHEER R

FRE B R RRARBE T 2 = Ak - W EL
SNEBPT S BRI o RRE R FF A 1508 E
YRR MSOEER NERHZR
HR=ZE-—mNF=A=+—HZBHEEFHE
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BEZ—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

23. GOODWILL - continued

Impairment Tests for Cash-generating Units

Containing Goodwill - continued
Note :- continued

Quanzhou Huihao

The recoverable amount of this cash generating unit (“CGU") is
determined based on a value in use calculation which uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period and with discount rates of 10.33%
(2013: 9.01%) per annum. Cash flow projections during the
budgeted period are based on the same expected gross margins
throughout the budget period. The management considers that it is
prudent and appropriate to adopt a steady 1% (2013: 1%) annual
growth rate of cash flows projections for each flows beyond the
budgeted period. This growth rate does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the market. Management believes that
any reasonably possible change in the other key assumptions on
which recoverable amount is based would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of this
CGU. Management determined the budgeted gross margin based on
past performance and its expectations for the market development.

The discount rate used reflects specific risks relating to the relevant
business and consistent with external sources of information.
Assuming the growth rate decreases by 150 basis points or discount
rate increase by 150 basis points there is still sufficient headroom
and no impairment charge is required for goodwill as at 31 March
2014 (2013: Nil).

23. e 1A

ERHEBZREES B AR ER

— iR
MizE: —4&
R M B 5F

hBREEESEM ([BEELEN]) 2TWE
SENREFEREEFTHEEE  MEABEER
BEEEMECRER EPRMIEEEMS
HeBEEeREFER URMERSF10.33%
(ZE—Z=F:901%)sTE -BEHAZES
mEFER DEREZEREHRERZEEE
FEHE - EEERA RNEEHERESR
BrEBEERRRI(ZE—=H:1%)#
ENEEEREE HERERITBBHEZ
RHFEHERZ-BEHEMEG sETWRES
BB HEMEABRIELEBE 2 ES
B FASEHUHBESEESEN 2 REMAERE
HoEBEEAE - EEEREBERERE
SRR BAEEHEER R

FRE B R RRARBE T 2 = Ak - W EL
SNEBPT S BRI o RRE R FF A 1508 E
YRR MSOEER NERHZR
HR=ZE-—mNF=A=+—HZBHEEFHE
XH(ZZE-—=F %)

EREEEZEERERAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

24. INVENTORIES 24. &8
Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial REETBRRR2EERTRE:

position comprises:

2014 2013
—ZE—M@mF —E2—=F
HK$000 HK$'000
FHExT FH&xT
Finished goods S RK 128,541 119,570
25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 25. HEREMBRRERZE S
DEPOSITS
The Group The Company
3. F4F
2014 2013 2014 2013
—e-m% | -%-=5 | Ze-mF | -%-=%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THET FHT THT
Trade receivables g5 ERE 271,763 345,800 - -
Bills receivables EKZE 7,748 7,490 - -
Prepayments and deposit paid BAREREMES 127,116 58,181 113 2,036
Prepaid lease payments (Note 21) BEAEERE (MEE21) 188 184 - =
Other receivables Hth R IE 22,321 16,976 - -
429,136 428,631 113 2,036
Less: Impairment loss recognised R E A R E R
in respect of other receivables REBE (1,152) (1,232) - -
427,984 427,399 113 2,036
As at 31 March 2014, bills receivable of approximately R-Z2-—MNEFE=A=+—HB BREELD
HK$7,748,000 (2013: HK$7,490,000) will be matured within 7,748,000/ T (—Z & — =4 : 7,490,000
six months after the end of the reporting period. All the bills BR)ERBEHRSEAREE -TAE
receivable are denominated in RMB. EREEGUAREEHE
WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

Included in other receivables was the value added tax
("VAT") recoverable of approximately HK$9,750,000 as at

31 March 2014 (2013: HK$10,753,000).

Payment terms with customers from the pharmaceutical

wholesale and distribution business and pharmaceutical

retail chain business are mainly on credit. Invoices are

normally payable from 30 to 90 days of issuance. The

following is an aged analysis of trade receivables based on

invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

25. RO RAMBEBRRERZESR

— &
R-ZE-—NEF=A=+—H 5t AH
fthEKW R E 2 AT E B ER ([BE
#]1)#9,750,0008 T (=& —=
10,753,000/ 7T ) °

EQMBROHERUARERSEEHE
FEBBEFHRARAIRAEERATEREN
ME—RAENRBEAHHE30290AR X
e ATARBREHRRREZZAHNE
55 FE W SR I8 19 BR . 0 AT

2014 2013

—ZT—mE ===
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T T
Within 90 days 90H AW 223,387 284,759
91 — 180 days 91£180H 27,562 56,130
181 — 365 days 181£365H 15,439 3,489
Over 365 days HiB365H 6,711 2,859
273,099 347,237

Less: Impairment loss recognised B S ERFRIERERN
in respect of trade receivables B EE (1,336) (1,437)
271,763 345,800
EESEREEBRATR
2013/2014 3R 163
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 25. RAREMBERRARESR
DEPOSITS - continued — iR
Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts which EXEENEZ BN RBEEERREH
are past due at the end of the reporting period but against REBHEREE L RERERKER
which the Group has not recognised an allowance for RBEHENRE REABBERENGEES
doubtful receivables because there has not been a significant EWEEREHENAAT TWE - RE
change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered EYERBEEEREEETMERRRNE
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or other fEEMEIER - EEERER A LAARE
credit enhancements over these balances nor does it have a B4R R 5EF WA FRIE/EKE o @85
legal right of offset against any amounts owed by the Group WENERRIBESREMBERENE S
to the counterparty. The individually impaired receivables BEEMNFIGAEZESETEWE -
related to customers that were in financial difficulties and
the Directors assessed that the amounts are not expected to
be recovered.
Ageing of impaired trade receivables ERERSERRAZER
2014 2013
—2—mE | —F—=
HK$'000 HK$’000
THET FET
Over 365 days #iB365H 1,336 1,437
WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BEZ—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

DEPOSITS - continued

25. R RAMBEBRRERZESR

Ageing of past due but not impaired =¥ R CRERCE F-21:00 ]
2014 2013
—T-mE | —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT F#E T

Overdue by: 2EE:

1 =90 days 1£90H 27,562 56,130
91 - 180 days 91£180H 15,439 3,489
Over 180 days HiB180H 5,375 1,422
48,376 61,041

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balances are

balances with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$48,376,000 (2013: HK$61,041,000) which was past due

as at the reporting date for which the Group not provided for

impairment loss.

Movement in the provision for impairment loss

AR EBEZEBRBLESRTZERER
$H#948,376,0008 T (=& — =

61,041,000/ 7T) AR AwE S B E
it AEBUERETRBEERSE-

BERSBENRARRZAEGRRE RS

recognised in respect of trade receivables is summarised EhEmT -
as follows:
2014 2013
—Z—mE —E2—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Balance at beginning of the year REF Z 4R 1,437 1,044
Impairment losses recognised ERRAZREREE 518 859
Impairment losses reversed BEBERD (645) (476)
Exchange realignment Tk 26 10
Balance at end of the year RERZER 1,336 1,437
BEESEERARLR
2013/2014 3§ 165
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

25.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
DEPOSITS - continued

Included in allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance of
HK$1,336,000 (2013: HK$1,437,000). For overdue debts,
based on the past default experience, payment history of the
customers and subsequent settlement, the Group assessed
the corporate customers for potential impairment losses.
Full provision has been made for individual trade receivables
aged over one year with no subsequent settlement as
historical evidence shows that such amounts are not

recoverable.

Movement in the provision for impairment loss of the
Group recognised in respect of other receivables is

summarised as follows:

25. RAREMBERRARES

—#&
REBRERTAERREZE S ERE
MZBEEERH1,336,0008 T (ZF—=
F:1,437,0008T) - BB HBEEMS
FEERBEBEIRENRBZLER TP
RIREHRREABRLEETIMREERTFZE
ERERE RNAFCARRER—F2
HEWREE BRI E 5 W RRE
2HERE RERRBEBEZEER It
ZLHEM|EWE -

REMEERAREZAKERESR
BRSBHERMT:

2014 2013

—ZE—mE —E-=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FHE T

Balance at beginning of the year REF 2 48R 1,232 1,095
Impairment losses recognised ERRAZHEEE - 130
Impairment losses reversed BEEERD (101) -
Exchange realignment EH AR 21 7
Balance at end of the year RER 2 &8k 1,152 1,232

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

26. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 26. RIBARZRE

The Company

. 34|
2014 2013
—ZE—MmE =Z2—-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FExT
Unlisted share, at cost KR ETMRMG  BEAS 6,484 =

R-EBE—NF=RA=+—H0 XA{7Tz2=E
EME AT (HABRAR)FBEWNOT :

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of which

are limited liability companies, at 31 March 2014 are as

follows:
Place and date of Particulars of Percentage of equity,
incorporation/ issued and fully effective interest and
Name of registration capital Class of paid ordinary share voting power held
subsidiaries and operation  share held capital/registered by the Company Principal activities
EMRx/ BTR
HMEXR ik BERLER/ FARRHECRE
HELRER EEHERAY B %R EmEEZHR ERERRRRECLA FTERE
Direct Indirect
EE &
% %
Luxuriant Expand British Virgin Island/ Ordinary Us$100/ 100 - Investment holding
10 April 2012 US$50,000
i3l XBRZEE/ LER 100%7,/ REER
“E-“EMATH 50,000% T
Timely Hero British Virgin Island/ Ordinary Us$1/ - 100 Investment holding
1 December 2006 US$50,000
53 XBRZEE/ LER E374 REER
“EEREtZA-H 50,000% T
Nurture Fit British Virgin Island/ Ordinary Us$1/ - 100 Investment holding
16 July 2009 US$50,000
®E XBRZHEE/ EER 121/ REER
“EERELATAA 50,000% 70
Hui Hao (HK) Group Hong Kong/ Ordinary HK$1,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Limited (“Huihao 1 March 2004
Hong Kong")
B (RE)BEEE %/ EER 1,000,000 ¢ REER
BRAR “ZIME=R-H
([E#EE])
ERSEERERAR
2013/2014 & 4§ 167
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

26. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES - continued

168

Place and date of
incorporation/

Particulars of
issued and fully

26. RMBATIZIRE — &

Percentage of equity,
effective interest and

Name of registration capital Class of paid ordinary share voting power held
subsidiaries and operation  share held capital/registered by the Company Principal activities
EMex/ BiTR
EMEER Fiis BRBEER/ FLREACKRE
HELARER EEHERAY Lk EMRFZHRE ERERRRREZLA TEXRH
Direct Indirect
EE H#&
% %

Fujian Huihao Sihai The PRC/ Registered RMB15,856,350 - 99.29 Pharmaceutical retail chain
Pharmaceutical Chain 30 November 2001 business in the PRC
Company Limited
("Huihao Sihai")*

BREFNSREEH wE/ ERER AR 15,856,35070 REEERTEEHEEY
BRELAR “BE-F
(TZfmE]) ¢ T-A=1H

Fujian Province Fuzhou The PRC/ Registered RMB60,000,000 - 100 Pharmaceutical wholesale and
City Huihao 9 July 2008 distribution business in the PRC
Pharmaceutical
Co. Ltd. ("Fuzhou
Huihao")*

BEABNTERES wE/ EfRER AR #60,000,0007C REEERR BRI EFES
BRAR “EZ\FLANA
(TRNEHF]) "

Putian Huihao Medicine The PRC/ Registered RMB10,000,000 - 100 Pharmaceutical wholesale and
Co. Ltd (“Putian 11 July 2008 distribution business in the PRC
Huihao")*

RERHSFRE wE/ EREXR AR#10,000,0007 RAEEERR BRI EEH
BRAF “EE\EtAT-H
(TEHEHD "

Fujian Huiming Medicine The PRC/ Registered RMB20,000,000 - 100 Pharmaceutical wholesale and
Co. Ltd. ("Fujian 10 July 2008 distribution business in the PRC
Huiming")*

BRAEAREERAA hE/  ERER AR 120,000,000 REBRERYBRIHEH
([BEEH]) " “EE\FtATH

Quanzhou Huihao The PRC/ Registered RMB10,000,000 - 100 Pharmaceutical wholesale and

17 May 2007 distribution business in the PRC

FNEH mE/  HERE AR #10,000,0007 REBZERY BRI HEE

“EELERATLA
# The English names of the Company’s subsidiaries in the 5 AARHEMRBARZREESEHZF

PRC are transliteration of their respective Chinese names

have not has been registered.

In addition, the directors of the Company made an

assessment as at the date of initial application of HKFRS 12

and at the end of the reporting period. In the opinion of the

directors, there is no subsidiary that have non-controlling

interest individually that are material to the Group and

therefore no information is disclosed for the non-wholly

owned subsidiary.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BEZ—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

26. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Significant restrictions
Cash and short-term deposits of RMB held in the PRC are

B KRR Hl

subject to local exchange control regulations. These local
exchange control regulations provide for restrictions on
exporting capital from the PRC, other than through normal
dividends.

27. AMOUNT DUE FROM A FELLOW

26. RMBARIZIRE — &

RABUAREEENRERERER
BERETEME L EEE
SRR G P B 2 BN E AR RS
HEB - RREBRERIN

o %L EihE

27. Bl —RRA %M E 2L B KRIA

SUBSIDIARY
2014 2013
—2—mF —Z2-—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FHE T
Name of a fellow subsidiary —HERMELATEE
Edward Hospital Company Limited EEEEEERBRAA 2,956 448

The maximum amount due from a fellow subsidiary

outstanding during the years ended 2014 and 2013 are as

BE-Z-NFER-ZE—=FIFE E
WRIRKMBASRENRBBNNERS S

follows: EHANTE :
2014 2013
—E—MmE =F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FERT
Name of a fellow subsidiary —HRRMELFRE
Edward Hospital Company Limited EEREEERARAA 2,956 3,419

The amount due from a fellow subsidiary is unsecured,

ERABREREE-

interest-free and recoverable on demand.

EESERERERLR
2013/2014 3§

Y —-—BERENBARARERBER 2
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28. AMOUNT DUE FROM THE IMMEDIATE
HOLDING COMPANY

28.

FE U B B X R R IR

2014 2013
—Z—@mF —E—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FE T
Name of the immediate HERRAFTRE
holding company
Greatly Wealth RE 5 5

The maximum amount due from the immediate holding

company outstanding during the years ended 2014 and

BEr—E-—NER-—ZE—=-FEIIFE &
WEZEZERARAREMREBRNEGES 2

2013 are as follows: BT :

2014 2013
—E—MWmE —E2—=
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Name of the immediate HEERBRAFSESB
holding company

Greatly Wealth RE 5 5

The amount due from the immediate holding company is

unsecured, interest-free and recoverable on demand.
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29. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

30.

29. BAFEHBBRRIIBRZ &R

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS IA
2014 2013
—E—@mFE —E2—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT TET
Investment at fair value BAFEINRZRE 1,259 =
Fair value NEE 1,259 =

As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s investment in open-end

asset portfolio wealth management products were

designated at financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss of which fair values are determined by reference to

R-BE-MNE=A=+—0 ANEERNH
BRREEAGHEBEMERZRENEE
ARATEERERIECEMIA H
AFEDSEFEBEET SIS 2ZHES

the quoted market bid prices available on the relevant PRC MEEE -
market.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 30 e RBieEFEHRERCH M
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS HMITHER
The Group The Company
KM@ EAF
2014 2013 2014 2013
—F-mF [ =F-= —F-mF [ 2=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T FTET T#T FTBT
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEMEER 43,638 30,676 102 10
EESEEEBRAR
20132014 &3 171
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30.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS - continued

At the end of the reporting period, the cash at banks and
in hand of the Group denominated in RMB amounted
to approximately HK$34,835,000 (2013: approximately
HK$30,501,000). The cash and cash equivalents are deposits

with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
but conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject
to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorization to

conduct foreign exchange business.

Pledged bank deposits:

As at 31 March 2014, a bank deposit denominated in
RMB amounted to approximately HK$17,431,000 (2013:
approximately HK$3,609,000) were pledged as collateral for
bank borrowings and bill payables. And the effective interest
rate on pledged bank deposits is 2.8% (2013: 3.0%).

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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30. e R SFEREREHIA

RITER—&

RBEER > NEBMUARKEIE 2 RIT
ReRFEREE 14 534,835000%
7T (=& —=%:30,501,00087) - R
SRESEEYNEFREHLEEND
BMEBREFZBITe

ARBAIEHABDBHEMER HEAR
WARBBIINEDABTHE AL INE
ERRGINRGEE EERNEEESRE
FEEEEEBERBETIEXREDN
RITHARBLZBLDBHMER -

SEFER:

R-ZBE-—MNME=A=+—0  LAR®
BEZRITEREN17,431,0008 7T (==
—=%:%3,609,00058 T ) I IRITIEE
RERZBEEHREAEAR REEHR
TREARZEBANEH28% (ZF—=:
3.0%) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BEZ—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

31. R RAMMEMRIF

The Group The Company
%M F0T

2014 2013 2014 2013
—Z-mF “E-=f —Z-mE —E-ZF%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR THT THEx
Trade payables BAEMARIE 192,298 278,309 - =
Bills payables EREE 36,070 4,350 - -
Accruals and other payables EitERREMEATE 31,763 21,083 2,577 3
Receipt in advance BB 22,949 3,016 - -
283,080 306,758 2,577 3

Included in accruals and other payables was the deposits

from customers of approximately HK$16,117,000 as at 31
March 2014 (2013: HK$1,242,000).

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the

ARG ERREMENMREARE -
E-NFEF=A=+—-HILERBEFZ
B #16,117,0008 T (=& —=

1,242,000/8 75 ) °

BUTARBKEMRZE S ENREARER

end of the reporting period: DA

2014 2013

—ZT—mE —2—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FET
Within 90 days 90H KA 131,694 157,368
91 — 180 days 91£180H 15,492 56,640
181 — 365 days 181&£365H 18,504 51,350
Over 365 days 83651 26,608 12,951
192,298 278,309

BEESEERARLR
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31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES - continued  31.

The credit period on purchases of certain goods in range
from 30 to 90 days.

The bills payables are matured within six months from
the ended of the reporting period. And the bills payables
were secured by certain pledged bank deposits. All the bill

payables are denominated in RMB.

32. AMOUNT DUE TO THE ULTIMATE 32.

HOLDING COMPANY
The Company and the Group
Amount due to the ultimate holding company is unsecured,

interest free and repayable on demand.

33. AMOUNTS DUE TO SUBSIDIARIES/FELLOW  33.

SUBSIDIARIES/NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF A SUBSIDIARY

The Company and the Group

Amounts due to subsidiaries/fellow subsidiaries/non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiary are unsecured, interest

free and repayable on demand.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BEZ—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

34. BANK BORROWINGS 34. RITEE
2014 2013
—EZ—MmF =T — =
HK$000 HK$'000
THExT TET
Bank borrowings — secured RITEE-—BEHA 88,088 50,672
2014 2013
—ZE—MmE —E2—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTET
Carrying amount repayables: EEERTSHE:
Within one year shown under —FR FARBERE
current liabilities 88,088 50,672
Bank borrowings at: RITEERUTFE:
2014 2013
—E—MmE —E-—=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T8t
— Variable interest rate —Z 8 62,920 1,236
— Fixed interest rate —-EE 25,168 49,436
88,088 50,672
EESEEEBRAR
2013/2014 F 4§ 175
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

34. BANK BORROWINGS - continued

The contractual variable and fixed interest rates per annum

34. BITHE —I&

FHRRTEEUSHNFIERESFEZ

in respect of bank borrowings were within the following FRENTINEER :
ranges:

2014 2013

—E—MF —F—=
% %

Variable rate FE 7.78 to 8.40 7.80
Fixed rate EE 8.10 | 7.57 to 7.80
Notes: P EE

As at 31 March 2013, the secured bank borrowings of
approximately HK$12,359,000 were secured by personal
guarantee by Mr. Weng lJiaxing who is executive director of
the Company and an independent third party.

As at 31 March 2013, the secured bank borrowing of
approximately HK$37,077,000 were secured by corporate
guarantee by independent third parties and inter-group
company, carries fixed interest rate at 7.57% to 7.80% per
annum as at 31 March 2013.

(@ RZZE—=F=ZA=+-—H FEAR
T8 E#912,359,0005% 7T J3 LA fn &2 55
E(RQRAZHTER)R—BBEILE=
FIRENBEAERERKR

by R=-ZT—=F=A=+—H BEHE
1T& & #37,077,0005% Jt Bl LLIB 3L 56
EAREERARAARENAAERE
KR MEERER=-_T—=F=A
=t+—BZERNRISIEET0EUE
BEtR-

(0 As at 31 March 2014, the secured bank borrowings of (0 MR-ZZE-—HWNE=A=+—H BHEF
approximately HK$62,920,000 (2013: approximately R 4718 E#962,920,0008 T (= &E—=
HK$1,236,000) were secured by corporate guarantee by inter- F1#1,236,0008 7t) AEBER A AR
group company, carries variable interest rate at 7.78% to MWD FERERBER X RFEFE
8.40% (2013: 7.80%). 7.78EE8A0E (ZF—=%:7.80E)

LUZEETR

(d) As at 31 March 2014, the secured bank borrowings of (d) A—ZE—NME=A=+—H BiEKHR
approximately HK$25,168,000 were secured by corporate TEE 25,168,000 T U EB K A T
guarantee by inter-group company, carried at fixed interest BHNATERELIKT WIRER =X
rate at 8.10% per annum. 8. 10EUEEFTE °

(e)  Details of assets were pledged to bank to secure the Group's (e) IEBFRITULGAREBEE ZBITE
banking facilities, please refer to the Note 42. B BECHBESEMEL2 -

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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36.

Notes: — continued
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BEZ—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

34. BITHE —1#

MizE: — &

(f) Details of guarantees provided by related parties are set out in (f)

Note 40(c) & (d).

(g)  The carrying amount of the Group’s bank borrowings are all

originally denominated in RMB.

DEFERRED TAXATION

No deferred tax liabilities or assets are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group and the
Company did not have material temporary difference arising

between the tax bases of liabilities or assets and their

(9)

M BE S R IR 2 SRR M &£40(0)

K(d) e

REBZRITEE ZREEZI 2B

AR®SE-

35. EERIEA

carrying amounts at 31 March 2014 and 2013.

HAXREER-Z-—NFEFR-ZF—=

A=t - RZEEREEHRERARK
EETEHRRENEER QI EE(EL
BRABEREERRESMBRERDES -

SHARE CAPITAL 36. & &
Nominal
value of
Number of ordinary
shares shares
BERZ
BRin8 RHEE
HK$'000
THExT
Authorised: ERE
On the date of incorporation and REMAZ B R
31 March 2013 Ordinary share of —E—=-H=ZHA=+—H
HK$0.01 each FREEEB T ZEER 38,000,000 380
Increase of ordinary shares 38 IR 1 0 1,962,000,000 19,620
At 31 March 2014 R=Z-NF=B=+—H 2,000,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRMR:
On the date of incorporation and REMRZ AR
31 March 2013 == _=F=H=+—H 1 1
Issue of share under the Reorganisation 1R 5 & 4 3% 17 IR 19 648,405,299 6,483
At 31 March 2014 BR-E—HWME=A=+—H 648,405,300 6,484
ARREERARLE
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

36. SHARE CAPITAL - continued

Notes:

(a)

178

The Company was incorporated on 9 July 2012 with
an authorised share capital of HK$380,000 divided into
38,000,000 shares of par value HK$0.01 each.

On 9 July 2012, one share was allotted and issued in nil
paid form the incorporation share to Codan Trust Company
(Cayman) Limited as subscriber, which was then transferred by
Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited to Greatly Wealth at
nil consideration on the same date.

Pursuant to the written resolutions of our sole Shareholder
passed on 3 September 2013, the authorised share capital
of the Company was increased from HK$380,000 to
HK$20,000,000 by the creation of a further 1,962,000,000
shares.

On 3 September 2013, the Company acquired the entire
issued share capital of Luxuriant Expand from Hua Xia
in consideration of the Company allotting and issuing
648,405,299 fully paid up shares (all credited as fully paid) to
Greatly Wealth and the crediting as fully paid at par of the
incorporation share registered in the name of Greatly Wealth.

Immediately following the completion of the spin-off, without
taking into account of any shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of any options which may be granted under the
share option scheme, the authorised share capital of the
Company will be HK$20,000,000 divided into 2,000,000,000
shares, of which 648,405,300 shares have been allotted and
issued, fully paid or credited as fully paid and 1,351,594,700
shares remain unissued. Other than the shares issuable
pursuant to the exercise of any options which may fall to be
granted under the share option scheme, or the exercise of
the general mandate referred to in the paragraph headed
“Written resolutions of our sole shareholder dated 24
September 2013"” in the prospectus of the Company dated
30 September 2013, under this section, the Directors have
no present intention to issue any part of the authorised but
unissued capital of our Company, and without the prior
approval of the members of our Company in general meeting,
no issue of shares will be made which would effectively alter
the control of the Company.

Save as aforesaid, there has been no alteration in the share
capital of the Company since its incorporation.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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36. lRE — i

B 5

(a)

APABR=ZFBE—Z—FEtANBAZEMRK
3B YR E R AN £380,0008 T 4 B
38,000,0008% 5 I% E {E0.017% T 1Y AR
3 o

R=ZZ—=—F+t AN H  @mCodan Trust
Company (Cayman) Limited ({E%& 288
A) B R BT — RARBR AR %R
B H%MNE B HCodan Trust Company
(Cayman) Limited S {E 85 3% F K 8 o

REE-—RER-_Z—=FNLA=H
ABNEARBR AQAEE— P
£81,962,000,0008 B 17 » #$ A2 BEE
% 7< 4380,0007% Jt 1 £20,000,0005%&
=

RZB—=FAA=B AQAHEE
KEENNEDERTRA EAHERD
7] [ K 3 R 2% K 3% 17648,405,299 8% 44
BRI (ZBARIIEHRR) RIRE
BEUABRARNAEETRRERE TG
T B 3 BR 47 B X (E o

ZES IR TRE > Tet RARBERET
B 7 52 1% A 1E (7 B8 AR AR XE 1T {1 7T A
BITHEM[RED N2 K EERRE
#20,000,0005% 7t (5 %2,000,000,000
PR B ) H 648,405,300 B 2 E
ERERET BERARIMEHSZ
1,351,594,7008% B 0 1 R B 1T ° BRIR 15
BB B RE ST B W RE AR H A (R BB AR AE T
FREARQAFAERAE—_T—=FLA=T+
BeBREFIBHA-ZT—=51A
“TUEME-REEERIR] &
FRist —MIZRETEM AR THR D
S RIBULE  EEEAIESERITALA
EEBERBITRANEMBS  BXR
BARDNFBRRABRAE ESEHE
TERTER LRERATAEFENR
% o

BrEuiE SN AR BRA B MBS 2
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BEZ—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

37. RESERVES
The Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013 are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity

of the consolidated financial statements.

Details of change in the Company’s individual components

of equity are set out below:

37. i@
*EH
AEBEEZE_ZE—NER-_ZF-—=5=
B=t+-HULFEZRERAZHEE
2IRGEMBRR2GEREET R

AT 2 AR S B> BB E RS
T

The Company b /N
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
Bin i E RiER - Hy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TART TER TAR
At 9 April 2012 R-E-—£NAANA
(the date of incorporation) (MM BH) - - =
Loss for the period HEER - (7,423) (7,423)
Total comprehensive loss BRAZHEEAR
for the period - (7,423) (7,423)
At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 R-E-=&
=ZA=t-HEkK
—2-=5NMA-H - (7,423) (7,423)
Loss for the year EEFE - (8,355) (8,355)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREAERAE - (8,355) (8,355)
Share issuing expenses RDBTHRE (7,653) - (7,653)
At 31 March 2014 R-S—MmE
=R=+—-H (7,653) (15,778) (23,431)
EESEEEBRAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

38.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLAN

The Group operates as Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in
funds under control of trustees. The Group contributes 5%
of relevant payroll costs to the scheme, this contribution is

matched by employees.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established
in the PRC are members of state-managed retirement
benefits schemes operated by the local government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the retirement benefits to fund the
benefits. The only obligations of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefits schemes are to make the specified

contributions.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BEZ—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

39. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 24 September 2013, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) whereby the
Board can grant options for the subscription of our shares
to the employees, managerial staff and senior employees
and those other persons that the Board considers that
they will contribute or have contributed to the Group (the
“Participants”) as described in the Share Option Scheme
in order to serve as compliment and to reciprocate their
contribution to the Group. The maximum number of shares
that can be issued according to the Share Option Scheme
was 64,840,530 shares, which is equivalent to 10% of
the issued capital of the Company after completion of
the Listing on the Stock Exchange. The number of options
that may be granted pursuant to the terms of the Share
Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued shares
immediately after the completion of the Listing. Unless
otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting, the number of shares that may be granted
to a Participant under the options shall not exceed 1%
within any 12-month period (other than those granted to
the substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company or the independent non-executive Directors
or any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules)), or the total number of shares that may be granted
under the options to the substantial shareholders of the
Company or the independent non-executive Directors or any
of their respective associates shall not exceed 0.1% of the
shares in issue of the Company from time to time. There is
no minimum period that the options must be held before
they become exercisable, and the options granted shall be
exercised within the period decided by the Board; however
no options shall be exercised 10 years after they have been
granted. The exercise price of the option shall be the higher
of (a) the closing price of the shares on the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b) the
average closing price of the shares on the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) nominal
value of the share. Each grantee shall pay a consideration of
HK$1.00 at the time the option is granted. The Share Option
Scheme shall take effect from the date it is adopted and shall
remain effective within a period of 10 years from that date.

Since the Share Option Scheme was adopted, no options
have been granted during the reporting period (2013: Nil).

39. BBz R &

RZZE—Z=FAA=-1THHA AQAFEK
Mm—IERE R ST B ([BE PR fET &) - 1B
It B2 RAEEES THAER
SABMEURBRESEMLEESSA
AEESHIELHAEEELE/MNZ
SEHMALT(BHERALTDREBERE:
URBAARRMG BHOEELSL TR
BREHREEHRNEEELENER R
EERESSTRITNRESROEBE A
64,840,530/ B 17 HHZE R AR A B A B 32
FIERLEHBEBHITRANI0% - RIE
BRESIAGRIRENERERE T
BHEBBEEK ELTREARATSEITR
BH10% " BRIFARDBRERBRRAS
STHE SR RIEERER TSHEA
THWRHGE B REMIERATEEB
1% (AARAABEERR (EXRLHHR
ASB LI TESSIHESBZHE
AT (ERR EMHRE)JEEBRI) » =X
REBREIRFAQLAFTERREE
YHPBTEESRFERESENEMTHEA
THWRDEHFTBEBADAFED %
TRMI0.1% - BB EBREATHE
RIAFENRENE MELHNERESR
RESERENHBANTHE  BALBER
EARBRHEBBRBI0FEBITE - BRET
FEAERQRMNEL BBBERIMEH
MERLAINVBTE: ORDRERE
REBMAEERS BHR S HRE
®*EFPINFIWHE; R(ORGDWEE
ZBSE BFEABABRERIERE 2
FAS1.008 T 2 1B - BIRFEST B AER
MEBER BEZARFH0FEHERD
RBEM

BERAARE IR AERT BILR . RARSEHBL
AREEMBERE(ZZ—=F:8) -

EREEEZEERERAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

40. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY 40. EXFABALTRS

TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements of Notes 12, 14, 15, 27, 28, 32 and 33 the
Group had entered into transactions with related parties
which, in the opinion of directors, were carried out with
normal commercial terms and in the ordinary course of the

Group's business, as shown below:

(a) Key management personnel remuneration:

BREAFEERFRMIEE12 ~14 215227 28 232
K332 HAER D iR R & S AR W B
BEMALETTIRG EERR ZE
REDBEEARERAERAEERS
EBBREPET FIRMT

(a) EREBARFH:

2014 2013

—ZE—MmEF —2—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT FiERT
Short term employees benefits SHIEE A 640 392
Provident fund contributions AHESHEX 23 11
663 403

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BEZ—Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

40. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY 40. EXRBA LRS-
TRANSACTIONS - continued
(b) The transactions with related parties during (b) RIREHIM HRBALETZ
the reporting periods: ZHWMTF:
2014 2013
—ZE—QmFE —_ZF—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET TET
Sales to fellow subsidiaries: HETRANEB AR :
— Edward Hospital Company Limited —EBEEHEERARDT 3,962 5,335
— Jiaxing City Shuguang —EEMBXPAEEE
Western and Chinese HEEBERBRAT
Hospital Limited 19 970

Administrative service fee paid to the FfFFRAERATZ

ultimate holding company: EEREE:
- Hua Xia —%F 6,384 9,379

Rental expenses paid to the ultimate A FHRAZEBR AT Z

holding company: HEemX:

— Hua Xia —#¥3 - 224
Licence fee paid to the ultimate INTFRAERARZHAAE:

holding company:

- Hua Xia —%#5 411 =

Rental expenses paid to the spouse of X FHEEREE BB 2
Mr. Yung Kwok Leong HelExX 97 =

EESERERERLR
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40.

41.

184

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS - continued

(c) Mr. Weng Jiaxing who is executive director of the
Company, has entered into a personal guarantee
agreement on 30 October 2012 with Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited to secure banking
facilities on behalf of the Group in an aggregate
amount of RMB10,000,000 for two years and had been
settled during the year.

(d) Mr. Yung Kwok Leong who is a substantial shareholder

of ultimate holding company, he has entered into a

personal guarantee agreement on 14 March 2014

with China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited to secure

banking facilities on behalf of the Group in aggregate
amount of RMB10,000,000 for one and half years,
and the amount have not been utilised as at 31 March

2014.

The Group had entered into a number of transactions with
connected parties which, upon the listing of the Shares
on the Stock Exchange, became connected persons of
the Company under the Listing Rules. These transactions
are continuing connected transactions exempt from the
independent shareholder’s approval requirements under the
Listing Rules. The detailed information has been disclosed on

page 48.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, no member of the Group
was engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material
importance and no litigation or claim of material importance
was known to the directors to be pending or threatened

against any member of the Group.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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PLEDGED OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the followings assets
were pledged to bank to secure the Group’s banking
facilities in Note 34:

42. SEEH
RBEMEK THEEDERTRITUS
AEEEEM M RTHE

2014 2013

—E—MmE =F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Pledged deposits (Note 30) 2 FR (MFEE30) 17,431 3,609
Prepaid lease payments (Note 21) A HERE (FEE21) 1,979 =
Investment properties (Note 22) BEWE (KE22) 8,306 =
27,716 3,609

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee

At the end of each reporting period, the Group were
committed to make the following future minimum lease

payments in in respect of land and buildings rented under

43. BEHERIE
EEEFERREA
REREDF  AEBRET THHEEE
HEREELHRETA—FE+E
HEFHISNIAORRBEAS AR

non-cancellable operating leases with lease terms from one AEWMT
year to ten years which fall due as follows:
2014 2013
—g-mE | =F-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Within one year —FR 14,581 12,795
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_ZhF (BREEMFE) 17,883 21,050
Over five years BEUE 441 229
32,905 34,074
BEESEZEARATE
2013/2014 & 4§ 185
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44,

45,

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, the Group and the

Company did not have any significant capital commitments.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Completion of the proposed acquisition

On 9 April 2014, the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary,
Fuzhou Huihao, (the "Purchaser”) and Hui Hao Yi Yao
(Xiamen) Company Limited (formerly name as Xiamen Hui
Sheng Yi Yao Company Limited), a PRC pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution corporation, entered into an
arrangement agreement in relation to the conditional
acquisition 60% of net assets value of Hui Hao Yi Yao
(Xiamen) Company Limited (the”Proposed Acquisition”)
by the Purchaser. The consideration of acquisition of
RMB4,944,500 (equivalent to approximately HK$6,204,000).
Upon completion of the Proposed Acquisition, Hui Hao Yi
Yao (Xiamen) Company Limited will become a 60% owned
subsidiary of the Purchaser. The acquisition was completed
on 23 April 2014 with all the conditions precedent under the

arrangement agreement being fulfilled.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD - continued

Completion of the proposed acquisition

- continued

After the acquisition, the Company has engaged an
independent qualified professional valuer to measure the
fair value of the property, plant and equipment on the
completion date. Since the valuation is still in progress, the
Company is unable to measure any possible goodwill or
gain from bargain purchase as at the date of completion.
Therefore, the directors considered that it is not practicable
to disclose the financial information of Hui Hao Yi Yao
(Xiamen) Company Limited on the completion date at this

stage.

Legal Proceedings

On 12 April 2014, Fuzhou Huihao as plaintiff initiated legal
proceedings against a customer at the People’s Court of
Minhou County for a sale and purchase agreement, in which

the amount is not material.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 June
2014.
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Four Years Financial Summary
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A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last three financial years, as extracted from the
published audited financial statements and the prospectus, is set

BEECTREERYBRRERBREZLSE
RS =AY RFECEREREERGEL
BERF T :

out below:
RESULTS E
For the year ended 31 March
BE=R=T+—-HLEE
2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-mE —E-=% —E-C-f —E—-f
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET TERT TET TAT
Turnover BEE 2,096,455 1,885,369 1,712,147 1,357,679
Cost of sales HERA (1,906,991) (1,721,210 (1,551,795) (1,224,365)
Gross profit £% 189,464 164,159 160,352 133,314
Other revenue Htrlh 2 7,543 7,729 6,258 3,265
Other income H g A 746 1,078 1,922 231
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (70,524) (61,397) (54,899) (38,929)
Administrative expenses THRX (47,033) (46,802) (40,163) (41,233)
Profit from operations BERH 80,196 64,767 73,470 56,648
Finance costs BBER (6,015) (4,090) (4,928) (4,388)
Profit before taxation RRimias 74,181 60,677 68,542 52,260
Taxation A (25,113) (18,772) (23,210) (19,420)
Profit for the year FEERT 49,068 41,905 45,332 32,840
Profit for the year attributable to: UTATBEFEERT:
Owners of the Company KAREBA 48,920 41,763 45,228 32,765
Non-controlling interests FERER 148 142 104 75
49,068 41,905 45,332 32,840
As at 31 March
R=B=+-H
2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-mE —E-=F —E-CF —E--F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET TERT TET TAT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HERAR
Total assets BEE 1,432,719 1,390,923 1,293,698 1,206,595
Total liabilities “meff 386,996 (1,257,722) (1,203,905) (1,168,247)
Total equity EREE 1,045,723 133,201 89,793 38,348
WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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